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ITEM NO. 1: PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2011 FOR THE
COUNTY OF MAUI (CC 10-27)
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (gavel). . . I'd like to call the Council Budget and Finance
Committee meeting for March 31, 2010, at the Paia Committee Center to order.
Good evening, everyone.
AUDIENCE: Good evening.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you for coming this evening to provide testimony on the
Mayor's Fiscal Year Proposal for 2011. At this time, I'd like to yield the floor to
Councilmember Mike Molina who will introduce the Council Members as well as
the supporting staff. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Aloha Paia, and thank you for
coming out tonight to share your thoughts on Mayor Tavares' Fiscal Year 2011
Budget. Let me introduce to you the Members that are here tonight. First to my
immediate left from the island of Lanai, Mr. Sol Kaho'ohalahala.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And starting right down here to my right, our Council
Chairman from the island of Molokai, Mr. Danny Mateo.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And next to Chairman Mateo, a lady all of you know,
one of our treasures from Upcountry Maui, Councilmember Gladys Baisa.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And next to Councilmember Baisa, we have the father
of the "Flying Hawaiian" Shane Victorino, Mr. Mike "homerun" Victorino.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And, of course, sitting next to him, a man who's a
legend. Someday songs and books will be written about him, the irreplaceable
from South Maui, Mr. Wayne Nishiki.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And last not but not least, our Budget Chairman
meeting facilitator tonight from Kahului, Maui, Mr. Joe "show me the money"
Pontanilla.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh. And, of course, tonight's meeting will not be
possible without our wonderful Staff tonight. We have our Legislative Analyst
Carla Nakata and our Committee Secretary Tammy Frias, and also we have the
Executive Assistants for Chairman Danny Mateo, Arthur Suyama and Executive
Assistant Michele Yoshimura from Council, Budget Chair Joe Pontanilla. Please
give them a round of applause, too.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, everyone.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Molina. For every Committee Meeting,
you know, we've had different Council Members that represent the area to
provide introductions to the community I gotta say, Member Molina does the
best job so far. . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(laughter). . .
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, let's see. First of all, just some information. The
location of the restrooms are in the back. I guess everybody know where the
restrooms are located. Again, you're here to provide public testimony for Fiscal
Year 2011 as proposed by our Mayor Tavares, and it is our hope that, you know,
each of you provide testimony regarding the concerns that you have. As you
know, the economy today is, is at a point where all we see is negative. So we're
going to take all of your issues into consideration and formulate the budget so
that, you know, we can continue running this County as efficient as we can. For
those of you that haven't heard, the State of Hawaii, the Legislature is looking at
several House bills, two of 'em, that will take away the Transient Accommodation
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Taxes for the various counties: Big Island, Maui, the City and County of
Honolulu, as well as Kauai. On Monday, the Senate WAM Committee decided to
reduce the House bill number from 94 percent to 50 percent. In other words, that
the Legislature, the Representatives side, the House side, was going to give the
County their full share up to whatever we received this year for the next five
years, and whatever is over the, the amount of money that is taken by the State
will be going to the State Legislature, the State. But in Mon..., on Monday's
meeting, the Senate decided to reduce that amount by 50 percent. What it means
is that we were expecting $17.5 million in Transient Accommodation Tax. Now
if the bill is passed as noted in Conference Committee, then our share of the
House version will be $8.2 million of . .as far as Maui County goes. There's
another House bill that is in the Conference Committee. If that bill goes through,
we get zero. So I'm hoping that all of you can contact our State Legislators for
Maui County and tell 'em that, you know, not to take away the TAT from the
counties in the State of Hawaii, because for us, you know, it represents a chunk of
money for this upcoming budget. So I encourage, encourage every one of you to
contact your Legislator and, and tell 'em that, you know, don't take away the
TAT for Maui County.
Okay. Saying that, we're going to take public testimony at this time, but before
we start, can every one of you turn off your cell phone or put it on the silent
mode. Okay. For those of you that are providing public testimony, you have
three minutes to provide public testimony, one minute to conclude. And when
you come up to the mic, if you can speak directly into the mic, provide us your
name, organization that you represent, the Committee would appreciate that. The
first person to sign up for public testimony this evening is
William Tavares. . .followed by Alice Lennox.
. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .

MR. TAVARES: I'm not talking about taxes tonight, that comes later. I'm Bill Tavares,
member of the Paia Main Street organization. I'm here for a very important
reason, and that is to ask all of you to please provide the funding request for the
Tri-Isle Main Street Resource Center which supports all of the small towns in
Maui County, including Paia. I've been a member of this organization since 1989
and I want to attest to the very wonderful accomplishments of this organization,
and let you know that the County is getting an excellent return on their
investment. For your information, the local Main Street program was always
supported by the late Mayor Hannibal Tavares, who took much pride and had
great confidence in the program and its Executive Director Jocelyn Perreira. I am
certain also that my father, the late Antone F. Tavares, who developed a large part
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of Paia, would heartily support Main Street if he were alive today. I've worked in
the front lines of this organization and we have produced some significant
projects that have kept Paia Paia. For example, the Paia Strategic Plan; the
Business-Country Town Guidelines; a Business Capacity Study; the North Shore
Vision..., Visioning Program, project rather; and we are finally going to get after
our harmony about a quarter century or 25 or 30 years, the long-awaited Paia
Bypass Road. And if that goes through, we then will have cats because I've lost
over 30 cats on Hana Highway.
AUDIENCE: . . .(chuckle). . .
MR. TAVARES: These accomplishments--one has to have a slight wry sense of humor
sometimes--these accomplishments are a direct result of the tenacity and
professionalism of the Main Street Organization. Now I've just recounted a brief
list of accomplishments for one town, that's Paia. We need to continue to support
our local Main Street Program. It is a reflection of local planning for local
people. It is a champion of the people. Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Tavares. Members, any questions for the
testifier? Seeing none, thanks again.
MR. TAVARES: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Alice Lennox. . .followed by Deborah Hal..., Waltrip.
MS. LENNOX: Aloha, my name is Alice Lennox and I'm talking on behalf of the MEO
bus. I wrapped my car around a tree a couple of years ago and I couldn't replace
it, so I started looking for ways to get to the doctor and the dentist and to buy food
and all this lifeline stuff that I need. And I was able to get on to the Kaunoa
Escort Service and after a year they threw me off it, they said I was too frisky.
. . .(chuckle). . .
AUDIENCE: . . .(chuckle). . .
MS. LENNOX: And, and then they all told me, "oh, no problem, though, you'll get back
on, just do a grievance", and I did, and I did another one, and they said go to
MEO bus. Then the third one, then I, I even got on a first-name basis with the
lady that's in charge of the Office of the Aging, she was Debbie and I was Alice
by the time we finished talking, but she said go to MEO. Then I went over her
head over to Oahu and they said go to MEO. So I finally went to MEO and it's
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been great. I love all the drivers, I get around, they take me everywhere and now
it's like what's going to happen to MEO? We can't, you know, we can't just let it
go by the wayside. So even if you cut down from three to two, I'd be happy, and
I don't care about the dollar or what, you know, that you have to put in. But I just
thought--I've never been to one of these before and I thought I'd just come down
and put my two cents in. . . . (chuckle). . . Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you for coming down and putting in your two cents.
Appreciate that. Members, any questions for the testifier? Excuse me. Alice,
Alice, Alice, Alice, get back to the mic, please.
MS. LENNOX (from the audience): I'm so anxious to get off. . . . (chuckle).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(chuckle). . . Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'm sure we all are. Thank you, Chair. Ms. Lennox, I
wanted to ask you, you mentioned cut it from three to two; what were you
referring to?
MS. LENNOX: Oh, on the paper that has the suggestions of what the cutback would be,
the bus I take goes three times a week and they want to cut it back to one. So, I'd
be happy with two.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. I just wanted to make sure I knew what you were
talking about. Thank you-MS. LENNOX: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --very much.
MS. LENNOX: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Travis Urayanza, followed by William Cockett.
MR. URAYANZA: Good, good evening, everybody, every..., everyone. I'm, I'm
Travis Urayanza and I'm here on behalf of . .testifying for MEO, because when I
started to work in 2005 at K..., Kmart, I, I. . .you know, like for people with
regular wheelchairs I could understand, you know, that they could, you know,
easily fold. . .you know, could easily fold. But like for people with electric
wheelchairs, such as mine, it's hard for me to find any transportation. So having
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MEO is a big, is a big help for me because with, without it, I don't have any other
means of, of transportation. So, yeah, so I've never been to one of these meetings
before either, so I thought I would come, come down and give my testimony.
Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, thank you very much, Travis, for being here. It's a
very important thing we're talking about tonight. I wanted to ask you, have you
ever used the ADA paratransit that the Maui Bus does?
MR. URAYANZA: No, I've. . .no, I've never, I've never used it before.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Thank you very much.
MR. URAYANZA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Seeing none,
thank you very much. The next testifier is Clyde Higa, followed by
Vilivaka Pinedo-Vehikite
MR. HIGA: Hi, my name is Clyde Higa. I retired from Maui Pineapple Cannery as
boiler room, boiler room operator on their power plant. The separation payoff I
had all went to mortgage. I rode on the MEO medical transport to and from
Wailuku Kaiser Clinic for my medical care and checkups when I sometimes had
industrial and at-home injuries when I could not drive myself, like if I had a leg or
arm injury. I would have to depend on MEO, sometimes I would call my aunt
and uncle from Wailuku, and sometimes my cousin and her husband from
Kahului. . .only in emergencies like from Kaiser Clinic to home or being admitted
to the hospital. I depend on MEO for door-to-door transportation sometimes,
because, you know, I buy a lot of groceries from Costco and Safeway. My
relatives were relieved thanks for MEO. My cousins are busy with their own
families. They told me not to use their parents for transportation because they're
like 80 years old now. Riding down with MEO Ala Hou makes me wake up early
in the morning instead of sleeping in till like 10:00 a.m. Most of the MEO and
Ala Hou appointments are to 24 Hour Fitness to exercise to burn sugars and for
card..., cardiovascular exercise. I'm type 2 with diabetes, that's why. I can't
walk around my subdivision because there are no, there are no sidewalks. I, I
have only vision from my left eye. If there was a reduction to one times or no
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MEO to one times a week, it would have a hardship on me and my maintenance
on my health. Okay, thanks.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you again, Clyde. Vilivaka Pinedo-Vehikite, followed by Thomas Lum, Jr.
MASTER PINEDO-VEHIKITE: Good evening, Chair Pontanilla and the Members of
the Budget Committee. My name is Vilivaka Pinedo-Vehikite and I'm here to
thank you for your support and funding of the MEO Youth Services and MEO
transportation. I live in Makawao and currently attend Maui High School as a
sophomore. Every time I've been at MEO Youth Services, it has been an
awesome experience. I've been at MEO Youth Services for approximately
4 years. Youth, Youth Services has taught us job skills which helped me till this
day get a part-time job. I've also learned life skills which taught me how to be a
leader and how to be a hard worker. MEO Youth Services is a place where kids
can come together from, from places all around Maui and get accustomed to our
own backyard. What backyard might you say? Maui, traveling to places like
Hana, Kahakuloa, Kaupo, and Honokowai Valley. In our most recent activity
with the Papamoa(?) Boys Camp, we learned a few values about this Olelo
Noeau: ka pouhana o ka hale, the main post of the house, literally meaning,
literally meaning a leader. . .wait. . .literally meaning the person whom others
depend on for leadership, guidance, and help for the main stay of the family or
group. To me this means that being a leader is not an easy job. You have to be
patient, listen well, and be careful of the decisions that you, that you make,
because it can affect others that look up to you. Youth Services has also given a
lot of ho..., given me a lot of hope because some of my own peers can make
decisions that could be detrimental to healthy growth as young adults. MEO has
guided me in making healthy decision. As an adult I know that I'll be a good role
model for the youth. I know, I also want to mention my concerns about charging
a fee to ride the MEO bus and the Maui Bus. I live in a eight-member household
and we all, we all, we are already living on a tight budget. It would be great, it
would be a great hardship for us if we had to pay for transportation on the buses.
So please don't cut our funding and please don't charge for our transportation.
Thank you for giving me the opportunity to speak tonight, mahalo.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you. Thomas Lum, Jr., followed by Lee Lee Rhoades.
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MR. LUM: Aloha mai. . . . (spoke in Hawaiian). . . Aloha ahiahi kakou.
AUDIENCE: Aloha.
MR. LUM: My name is Thomas Christian Koikuokalani Lum, Jr., the eldest of six. I
currently live in Kahului. And I'm testifying on behalf of MEO services and what
it's done to me as a current employee for MEO Youth Services. I came into Maui
in 1997 and living under the. . .my, my mom as a single parent, it was pretty hard
at that time. MEO Youth Services as well as other youth services that I've
participated in guided me through the years. So participating with the MEO
Youth Bank, known then community services all around Maui, and then after
graduating from high school, going into MCC, Maui Community College, hooked
up with the programs with AmeriCorps and as well as Hawaii Youth
Conservation Corps, continued on to serve a whole summer out in Kahoolawe as
my choice of island to work. And after, after returning back to Maui, had to come
back because of financial hardship hit my, hit my family to continue little bit of
my further education. And so I returned to Maui in. . .after from University of
Hilo and from until now. Since my passion going through schooling and Maui
Community College was directed in Hawaiian Studies, you know, I looked
forward to teaching one day, and so I found MEO Youth Services, MEO and they
hired me, because, you know, I, I went through the program and I can probably
say that, you know, that I'm a product of basically what, what's been handed
down and, and, and served to our, our youths--exactly like the gentleman that had
stand before us, yeah. And currently now I have. . .my, my program. I'm now in,
in charge of the men's program or actually boys' council 'cause we have two
coun..., women's, the girls' council as well as the men's council or boys' council,
and that's my position to groom our young men to make healthy decisions for
themselves on Maui County and get us, get well acclimated to, you know, to
Maui. And so through this MEO has, has given me that, that venue. And
wrapping up, wrapping up my minute, and I'd like to say that if we do cut-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. LUM: --the services. . .come with our, our services to MEO, the repercussions
that's going to lead up into finances that are already hard for our families, like,
like paying an extra dollar, you know, to transit just where we need to go to, it
will be very hard for our, our kids. So take into consideration and mahalo for
your time. Aloha.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Thomas. It's a pleasure to listen
to you. I have a question about the dollar--you know, that's going to get kicked
around a lot, and we're listening to everybody and some people say they can pay
and other people say they cannot pay. Have you given any thought, has your
group given any thought to some kind of a student pass that maybe wouldn't
require you to pay a dollar every time you stop or and get on and get off, but
something affordable that we could set a pass rate for, you know, students or
seniors? But particularly I'm concerned about the youth. Anything reasonable
you can think of rather than us saying no, nothing, but could we come up with
something?
MR. LUM: I mean, you know, looking-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Like a monthly pass for some, some amount?
MR. LUM: That we'd probably have to take into consideration. I'm really not in. . .too
acclimated into the, the topic, but I know that, that it would be detrimental to, to
many of the youths that participate in our program.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah. I know it's really hard 'cause, you know.. .
MR. LUM: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . .we've got a lot of kids who can't afford to pay, but
we're being told, well, would you even consider something?
MR. LUM: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And we don't know what the something is. So it would
be really nice if maybe your kids could talk among themselves and families and
come and give us an idea. So thank you very much.
MR. LUM: Mahalo for this time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Seeing none,
Lee Lee Rhoades, followed by Ron Ladore.
MISS RHOADES: Hello, my name is Lee Lee and I have been going to Haiku Boys and
Girls Club for about five years now. This place is like my second home to me.
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The staff are not just people to me, they are my family. It is important for me to
have a place where I can always go, and this is one of them. I have had so many
experiences, all of them are a big part of my life. We appreciate what you do for
our Boys and Girls Club and without your hard effort for us, Boys and Girls Club
wouldn't be the same and would take a big chunk out of our lives. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you. Ron Ladore.. .
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .followed by Tatyanna Smith.
MASTER LADORE: Hi, my name is Ron Ladore and I just wanted to say thanks for the
Maui County Council for funding the Boys and Girls Club and the Maui Arts and
Cultural Center. I think the Maui County Council should continue to fund the
Boys and Girls Club and Maui Arts and Cultural Center because if you don't, I
would not be able to go to Boys and Girls Club anymore and that's not fun
because all I can do at home is watch TV and. . .do my chores.
AUDIENCE: . . .(chuckle). . .
MASTER LADORE: So, I love to go to Boys and Girls Club and because they have lots
of games and play lots of sports. I learn how to respect people better ever since I
started Boys and Girls Club from downtown all the way to Haiku Community
Center. P.S. Can you please continue to fund the Boys and Girls Club and the
Maui Arts and Cultural Center? Sincerely yours, Ron Ladore. Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Ron? Ron?
Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Ron. First of all, my first question, if
you go to Boys and Girls Club, you don't do, have to do your chores?
AUDIENCE: . . .(chuckle). . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: 'Cause if that's the case, then I'm gonna have to
cut the funding then.
AUDIENCE: . . .(laughter). . .
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MASTER LADORE: No.. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's okay, you don't have to answer that
question. Your parents are here, that's why.
AUDIENCE: . . .(chuckle). . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Secondly--no, no, Ron, Ron, Ron-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ron?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --I really do have a question, come, come. What
do you do at. . .you said you want us to support the MACC. What do you, what
do you get out of the MACC? You told us about Boys and Girls Club, what about
the MACC?
MASTER LADORE: 'Cause my teacher told me that instead of us paying for like more
money to go in, we just pay like $8 just to go in. So that's why I wanted to thank
you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So you've used the programs, the student
programs at the MACC?
MASTER LADORE: Yep.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you.
MASTER LADORE: You're welcome.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Tatyanna Smith, followed by Shantel Kaiakala.
MISS SMITH: Hi, my name is Tatyanna Smith and I am a Haiku Boys and Girls Club
member. Boys and Girls Club to me is like my second home. I love this Club so,
so much. Mostly every day after school I go there, and every time I'm there it's
always so fun with all the activities and friends. I've had many experiences and
learned plenty of things from this Club, like, like how to be a role model or how
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to make goals and achieve them. I love the Boys and Girls Club and hope it's
here to stay forever. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions -AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
MISS SMITH: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Shantel Kaiakala, followed by Dee Dee Dibasi.
MISS KAIAKALA: Hi, County Members. My name is Shantel Kaiakala. I think, I have
been coming to the Haiku Boys and Girls Club for two years. Thank you for the
money that you provide us for the Haiku Boys and Girls Club. I'd like to tell you
how important the Club is to me. I'm learning how to cook; I get help with my
homework; I participate in fun activities like basketball, soccer, dodge ball, arts
and crafts, SMART Moves, and the Girls Club. It's also a safe place for me to be.
Whenever I go to the Haiku Boys and Girls Club, I feel happy and excited
because I can't wait to do fun stuff. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, Dee Dee Dibasi. . .followed by Guy [sic] McDonald.
MS. DIBASI: Aloha, Council Members. My name is Dee Dee Dibasi and I have three
kids that utilize the Boys and Girls Club. My youngest son is Gabe, who's nine,
and he goes every day after school while I'm still at work. There's Merrick(?), 11
and Kelly, 13--they both go during breaks, as they're bus riders, so they get
dropped off at home. The kids enjoy the numerous activities and equipment
available to them. They are very different, so they all benefit from the varying
things that the Boys and Girls Club offer. I, I kind of asked them what they
thought. The oldest one thinks that the. . . --(change of tape, start 1b)-- ...He
likes that each staff does something different from the others, so he can pick what
he wants to do at any time. The middle one says ditto, and the youngest one Gabe
says that he likes to go on excursions during the breaks and they get to go to
places that we as a family might not get to go to frequently. He enjoys the
opportunity to socialize with the other kids; he likes everyone there; he goes to
Power Hour after school every day in the afternoon; he gets support from the,
from the staff members there with his homework, he gets that good individual
attention every once in a while; and he also goes to the Boys Group. He likes his
friends that go there so they can play outside or on the computers because they
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don't get to do that at school. So they spend a little quality social time there
together, too. He thinks Project Learn is great because you learn good stuff and
you get a treat for paying attention, and, and really, really knowing what you're
learning about. As a parent, I'm grateful for the caring and dedicated staff that
work there, taking the time to get to know each one of them, and they're genuine
and wonderful people and they're always willing to help me if I need some extra
help. It's a safe environment and I believe they have the best interest of the kids
in their hearts. They offer so many things for the kids to participate in. In the
facility and experiential field trips during the break, they get the kids involved
with the community and role model exemplar behaviors for youth. Just some of
their programs I wrote down was Youth of the Month, they recognize kids who've
been positive; they have a drug prevention; Smart Moves Program; they have
cooking class; computer center; Project Learn; Power Hour; Boys and Girls
Groups; physical activities; snack center; movies and outings, and one of their
outings includes a trip to the senior center where they play scrabble with the
senior citizens, and that's amazing. They also have indoor games which include
pool tables, ping pong, board games, bumper pool, and foosball. I've been
working with children for 25 years, I've been working with Maui's youth for 15
years. I'm a Behavioral Health Specialist at Kalama Intermediate School and I
always, I'm always concerned with what the kids do after school, where they go,
what's going on for them because I know-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. DIBASI: --that a lot of the kids that I work with don't have a lot of opportunity.
Any kind of a limitation in this program would cause more suffering for our
already deprived youth. We see how furlough Friday has affected our
community, our education, and the behavior of our children. To cut another place
that children have the opportunity to thrive and build self-, self-esteem would be
another blow to their fragile minds. I'm pleased and proud to be a part of a
community that values children. I'm honored that I was asked to speak tonight in
front of all of you, and I am confident that you understand how necessary
programs like this are to build safe, positive communities with outstanding youth
leaders. Thank you for your time.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you again. Guy [sic] McDonald. . .followed by Maria Quinn
Cockett [sic].
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MS. McDONALD• Good evening. Dee Dee's kind of short, let me adjust this. I can
give her a hard time. My name's Gay McDonald, I'm the Unit Director with
Haiku Boys and Girls Club. And I'm just here to--I'll put my paper down, I
always write a speech and then never look at it. So just to highlight a little bit
about what the kids have talked about and what Dee Dee talked about. As you all
know, I know you all are very familiar with the Boys and Girls Club over the
island. And I just want to testify to how important our program is and what we do
for our kids. As Dee Dee talked about, you know, we have experienced cuts in
other programs, you know, the school system and things like that. So, I think it is
an utmost importance that we look at what was really important, what we can do
for our youth and to sustain these types of programs that are very essential to
keeping our youth safe, productive citizens, and working together in the
community Just like my kids, my kids have talked about all the things that they
learn about: respect, doing community service, having fun, getting along with
each other in this type of setting where it's not someplace that they have to be like
a school setting, but someplace that they choose to be every day after school
during breaks and those types of things. I, you know, we've talked long and hard
about what we would have to do if we did experience, you know, more cuts, you
know, added on to what we were cut from last year. Frankly, I don't want to talk
about it, I don't want to think about it, but we do have to be realistic about what
kind of dollars we're talking about. We would be, first of all, hurting our youth
first and foremost and then the community after that. So, I just want to be very
concrete, you know, in saying that it is essential that we take no cuts this year,
that we continue to look at what's important, and I know you folks have a very
difficult job in front of you, and we understand that. But we just want to say, you
know, look beyond what is, what we're doing with our youth and continue to give
back to our community
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
MS. McDONALD• Anyone?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, thank you again for being here. Maria Quinn
Cockett [sic], followed by Andrew Valentine.
MS. QUINN: Hello, my name is Maria Quinn. Do you want to tell them your name?
This is my daughter Cocette, and I'm here to talk about the positive influence that
Head Start has had in our lives. Cocette joined my family at the age of 2 1/2 from
Ethiopia and she came with very little English and, you know, a bit shell-shocked
in her new environment. And I have to be honest, that I was a bit
overwhelmed. . .(chuckle). . into this new experience of mommy-hood. And
without the help of Head Start, I don't know that we would be where we are
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today. Cocette has far exceeded every expectation that I think myself and the
staff have had. She's ready to start kindergarten next year, she is reading and
writing. She did receive special services as having a student with a
developmental delay, so special ed., some speech language therapy, which were
all very helpful. In the next month or so she will be tested and be exited from
these services. So in our situation, I think it was a matter of pay now or pay later.
If she didn't receive these services now, she would have entered kindergarten and
needed the speech and language then, but instead she's going to enter
kindergarten, I would say, almost ahead of her peers. So I'm super grateful, I am
a teacher myself at Kihei Charter School, very picky about the educational
choices I make for my children. And I am just so blessed and thankful for Head
Start and thankful for you, and just ask please, please, please you cannot cut the
funding, even down to a half-day would just be so detrimental because I think the
families that take advantage, take advantage. It would just be so hard for families
who work to make it happen with the half-day program. I know that's another
thing that's been tossed around. So mahalo for your time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you very much.
MISS QUINN: Bye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Bye.
MS. QUINN: And you can see all these other cute faces, too. . . . (chuckle).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Andrew Valentine, followed by Elaine Ota.
MR. VALENTINE: Aloha, County Council. You probably know who I am. I've been
around three or four times. . . .(chuckle). . . I'm here on behalf of the Maui
Wheelers and Ohana Wheelers. We are wheelchair, disabled-oriented group
that's concerned about the funding for transportation. Without the transportation,
we cannot participate in the activities we'd like to, like this affair tonight, we
can't get out and go. Without buses we're confined to home and that's across,
that's same across the island. I have to, we have to limit my public involvement if
you cut MEO. As far as no charging fees, we've crossed this bridge in the
Midwest many years ago. A vouch, a bus pass system is ideal. You charge a
nominal fee for a bus pass that maybe all in comps..., comprehensive are at a
reduced rate, but other communities of this type have done this, it does generates
some income through a one-time bus pass fee for discussion, 5 or $10, and you
ride for the year, the six months or whatever. But some type of structure like that
is helpful 'cause it allows the person, like myself, to contribute, but then again I
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don't devastate my limited income if I have to pay out 25, 30, $40 a week. If you
cut anything on transportation, the ones--I've been encouraged to get out and do
things and participate in County programs, like the Parks Department programs,
we have to stop. So you've spent money setting up programs for us that we
cannot get to, so then you'd lose money on that end and it becomes a lose-lose
situation. Cutting transportation makes us stay at home. When we travel, we
carry an ohana with us, everybody goes 'cause we go. So that's more dollars out
there. But we stay at home, they stay at home 'cause they don't want us to be
home by ourselves. So, you know, don't cut, just find creative ways to maintain.
And I, I don't think we mind paying a little bit, but if you, if you cut this, we're
going to be paying out a lot, lot more just to try to maintain our daily lives.
Independent living requires us to be able to have access and getting out and doing
things. Thank you what you've done in the past, just maintain. And if you need
help, ask us, we're here. Mahalo.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Valentine. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And thank you, Mr. Valentine, for
being here. Have you used the paratransit system that the Maui Bus system has?
MR. VALENTINE: I use it all, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And you find it very accommodating? It does what
you need?
MR. VALENTINE: It's in process, it's a work in process. It hasn't...change that needs
to be made there as well, but without it, before it came along, all I had was MEO.
Because of it, I can do a lot more. And some of my constituents are here now.
I've encouraged them to make use of everything. So it's, it's a pathway to get
where we need to go, but it, there needs to be improvements there also. But we
need both-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. VALENTINE: --so we have an option.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. And then, you know, you were mentioning
about a companion. You mentioned that at times you need to have your ohana or
a companion with you?
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MR. VALENTINE: She's back there. . . . (chuckle).. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no, no. But there are some, some of your
wheelers that need their caregiver with them?
MR. VALENTINE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And you remember, you mentioned about them
being charged a dollar also.
MR. VALENTINE: Oh, on the fixed routes, what, somehow they, they got your
guideline you did last year, it's been misapplied, and the ADA, ADA says you
don't, companions don't pay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MR. VALENTINE: But they've been charging them on the fixed routes when they board
with--and I'll get Elaine, too. When Elaine gets on--Bryan's her
companion--they've been charging Bryan, and she can't travel without Bryan.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. VALENTINE: And that's not supposed to be applied. So in the wording of the
resolution it was not worded appropriately, so that's why they're charging. In
ADA guidelines, companions, PCAs travel for free because they're an essential
part of that person traveling.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you. And I'll, I'll wait till Elaine
testifies to get into that more specifically. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
MR. VALENTINE: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Member Baisa?
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you. Thank you very much, Reverend Valentine.
It's good to see you.
MR. VALENTINE: You too, ma'am.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: In regards to this thing about the ADA transit, transit and
MEO, my thoughts from what I'm hearing from you is, you know, the move is to
take the whole Ala Hou Program and move it over to the ADA paratransit and
take it away totally from MEO. And I'm wondering what, if I'm hearing you
correctly, you're saying that the way it is, better to have the two services and you
take the best of both?
MR. VALENTINE: Yes. Well, what I mean. . .well, it gives us flexibility. With the, the
Public Transit System, there's more restrictions that are applied under ADA and
some things they can and can't do under current guidelines. With MEO's
Transportation Program, it's more flexible to allow us to go to other activities
where the current guidelines for the public system will not allow that. It's. . .if the
public system would get, get me to Paia, then I take that. There's some areas in
Paia I want to go that the Public Transit System cannot take me, but MEO can
take me there. I can go visit my friend that lives in Paia because she's outside of
their radius of operation. So I'm, I'm limited by the structure of that fixed route
system. But with MEO, then I can go--if I wanna go visit Mike's family further
Upcountry, I can take MEO to go up there. Otherwise, they gotta come down and
meet me at Paia Community Center. . . . (chuckle).. .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I see. So we really need to look at that details of this and
make sure that we're not making it worse, that maybe improving on it is better
than taking all of the MEO away, putting it in one, and then having less options.
MR. VALENTINE: Right. If you put it, if you put it with the Maui Bus System, then
you'll have to go back and restructure the guidelines for the Public Bus System so
that they will go further out into reach. Right now it's a very narrow car door of
operation, and it means you'll have to go back and change that. You can change
that, but that's a lot more work for you so. . .a future operation. But right now
the, the cheapest way, maintain both and work toward expanding the overall bus
operation, then you don't, you--I won't say you never need MEO--but you won't
need MEO as much because then the fixed. . .the Public Bus System will cover all
the areas that MEO now covers.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Thank you. I think we're beginning to get the
idea. Thank you very much for coming.
MR. VALENTINE: Thank you for hearing me.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any more questions, Members? Seeing none,
Elaine Ota.
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MS. OTA: My name is Elaine and this is my aide Bryan. We go to the pool from our
house, we usually walk, it takes us over about 45 minutes from our house to the
pool. And if we take the bus, we have to pay $4 each time we go to the pool, and
that means if we go two times a week, that's $8. I, I don't think I can afford that,
you know. So we try and walk ourselves from our place to the pool, and it's
hot . . . (chuckle). . .I mean it's really hot going and coming back.
MR. ZOELLNER: My name is Bryan, I'm Elaine's live-in caregiver. I've been with her
for over two years now, and I am an employee of Nurse Finders of Maui. The
Department of Human Services provides, cares for Elaine. And I've basically
given my, my life to her. I don't really have a--we share. . .it's not a job, it's a
lifestyle that I have with Elaine. And so every hardship that she goes through, I
go through. We, we live in Kihei, we walk from the Foodland to Kihei pool. It's
a, it's over a mile and a half that we walk and, you know, she's, she's getting dark
skin now, so she doesn't like it. And the reason why we walk is because the
regular bus doesn't stop next to Kihei pool, and so we could use a bus stop there.
But also they charge both of us to ride the bus, even though I'm with her 24 hours
a day, I'm just as necessary for her to get on that bus as her wheel chair. I'm
also. . .have to pay. Also the, the MEO services that are planned on being cut is,
I'm not gonna say, it's just hard. A personal story that we have is when the
Roberts Hawaii bus couldn't pick us up, wasn't able to for time restrictions, MEO
was there. You know, we had to catch a flight because the flights are so much
cheaper in the morning. MEO is the only one that's willing to pick us up that
early in the morning to take us to the airport. You know, Roberts Hawaii has just
not been able to take us to our friends' houses. Elaine goes out a lot. You know,
she was just appointed the Board of Directors of the Hawaii Centers for
Independent Living. She's a disability activist, and she, she. . .this is her first
time attending one of these County budget meetings. She's always been a very
silent activist just by being out in the community, and please don't stop her from
being out in the community Please let her continue to go out and be an example
for other people in the wheel chair. I mean we aren't done fighting with disability
rights movement. It's not, it's not something to be swept under the rug yet.
We're not done. There are so many things that people just assume that we are
getting when we're not. We're, there's still many people that are stuck at home
because they don't even know about MEO services. HCIL was around, you
know, ten years ago and was a powerhouse for helping people with disabilities,
and they've gone away a lot because of cut funding and because of poor
management. But she's here trying to, to-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. ZOELLNER: --fight for disability rights again, and she just does not want. . . Here.
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MS. OTA: I think by taking away, you know, most of the transportation, it's like taking
our, my foot away. I mean, I mean we need the wheel chair to go places and
without that we can't go nowhere.
MR. ZOELLNER: One last thing, probably a bus pass, a monthly pass for even
paratransit service would be awesome. Our Evercare insurance, her Medicaid
was offering to pay for a bus pass, a monthly bus pass, but there is no monthly
bus pass for paratransit here. So they weren't able to pay for it and they are just
confused. They paid for them on Oahu. Thanks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any questions for the testifier? Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Thank you. And, Elaine-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Elaine?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --Elaine and Bryan? First of all, thank you for
being here. Secondly, Elaine, even when you go to town to your doctor's
appointment, you have to pay--not just going to the pool, that's just one
aspect--but if you go to town for doctor visits and other things, you have to pay?
And Bryan has to pay every time? That's correct?
MS. OTA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So it's not just the $4 twice a week to the pool, it's
other times, right?
MS. OTA: It's. . .yes, it's $4 each, I mean every trip.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Every trip.
MS. OTA: And $8 to Lahaina.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And the other thing you had mentioned to me just
so that everyone is clear that, you know, one of the other reasons Bryan has to be
with you is not only for your needs, but also to strap you in because many times
the bus drivers through the paratransit really, and the Maui Bus, are not
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experienced and they do a very poor job for which you've almost been injured?
Isn't that correct?
MS. OTA: Yes, two times.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Two times. You have mentioned that to me on our
meetings. So thank you and, Bryan, keep up the good work and we'll keep doing
what we can. Thank you, Bryan.
MR. ZOELLNER: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa? Bryan, Bryan?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Bryan, hold on and, Elaine, hold on. You know, that's a
very disturbing thing to hear because, you know, safety of the passengers is so
important. Have you experienced that with the MEO drivers or are they better
trained?
MS. OTA: I know this, the drivers for MEO is more careful. They, they strap you down
until the wheel chair don't move. But the drivers for the other bus, they don't
care if you were tied down. So, I let Bryan. . . (chuckle). . .tie me down so that I
won't move. I broke my foot because they didn't tie me down right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, thank you very, very much for your testimony and,
Bryan, thank you and thanks for all you do.
MR. ZOELLNER: Thank you, guys.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Bryan-MR. ZOELLNER: Yeah?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --can you give us your full name?
MR. ZOELLNER: Bryan Zoellner.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. ZOELLNER: Thank you.
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AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Elsie Santos. Elsie Santos, followed by Edel Baguio-Larena.
MS. SANTOS: Good evening.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Good evening.
MS. SANTOS: I've always wanted to say that.
ALL: . . .(chuckle). . .
MS. SANTOS: Excuse me. Thank you for seeing me tonight. My name is
Elsie Santos. . .on the Board of Commission Disabilities, member of the Maui
Wheelers, Ohana Wheelers, and we wheel all over the place. So, I just come
today. I've getting kind of a crying voice, but excuse me. I, I don't know what to
say, but all these guys said everything that they could say about paratransit, MEO.
MEO has been with me for half of my life, I'm almost 50, and they took me,
when I got diagnosed with MS, from the hospital, which I could, I was on the
gurney and I couldn't sit up straight, gurney chair and they took me home. I
always think of MEO as a family, you know. And now I'm getting out more,
getting into more things and our club is getting out more, and we just want to get
out more. So if you cut back things, we going stay in our house, we going get
little bit more larger and.. .
ALL: . . .(chuckle). . .
MS. SANTOS: . . .you, you know, stuff like that, but, you know, and we want to make a
difference in the community And, you know, being the buses, paratransit, MEO,
they help us, you know. And like paying a dollar, yeah, hardship but if you could
give us a bus pass that, you know, could, you know, maybe affix with our income
or I don't know, you know, but do something. But if you cut back, you cut back
from the children, our elderly people who are in their tender age that needs to get
out, you know. And I have a lot of nieces who use this after-school program, and
I don't know what to say, but, you know, when you cut back it hurts so much
people and, you know, for kids especially, you know, they need more mentoring,
they need to do stuff, even us. If you stay home, your brain go mushy. You need
to get out, you need to help people, you know, keep people aware and have fun,
you know. We like being the shakers and the mover. We get out, we go to the
bars or whatever, you know, night clubs.. .
AUDIENCE: . . .(chuckle). . .
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MS. SANTOS: . . .or even too, you know, just getting out to go to Kaahumanu or Maui
Mall or whatever, you know, to a party or somebody's funeral, you know. You
know, stuff like that is very important 'cause, like Elaine said, we need our chair
and we need the buses, we need the system, we need. . .you know, we need
everybody like our ohana, you know. I have a big ohana. So, you know, I know
about finances and everything each family has. And thank you, that's all I have to
say.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Member Victorino?
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Elaine [sic], Elaine [sic], thank you.
MS. SANTOS: Elsie.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So you, you're saying by having the two services,
MEO and the paratransit. . .
MS. SANTOS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .is have, has helped you increase your mobility
in getting out?
MS. SANTOS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And does, and this is your caregiver next to you?
MS. SANTOS: Yes, she's one of mine
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: One of, okay.
MS. SANTOS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And so when you travel with her, you also
have to pay a dollar every time you go with her no matter where she goes?
MS. SANTOS: Well, mostly for me I live central and I feel for my people that lives
outside, they have to pay more than me. But if I do take, yeah, they would have
to. . .I think my PCA going pay, but I pay.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MS. SANTOS: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So, so what you're saying is if you had to
pay a monthly pass would be what you would want.. .
MS. SANTOS: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .and you would want one for also your caregiver,
right?
MS. SANTOS: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you, thank you for that clarification.
MS. SANTOS: Thank you, Mr. Victorino.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much.
MS. SANTOS: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's great to hear from the people that use the service
because, you know, we can talk about it, but we don't use it. So there's a
different understanding or appreciation.
MS. SANTOS: Especially MEO, I can tell you I feel safe going to the doctors.
Especially when you're not feeling well, you want somebody that ties you down
good and know how to drive because I know how they got trained. And like I
said, I've been with them for so long, I feel like family. So, I know them. I'll
say, oh, yeah, I can call MEO, okay, you know, I feel good. If I'm not feeling
well and you want, you need to go to the doctors when you no feel well, you want
to be safe. So.. .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You said it all, I'll be quiet.
MS. SANTOS: Okay. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you. They got the message.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. SANTOS: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: For those of you that, you know, testifying on transportation,
you know, we have a daunting task in regards to what do we do about the bus
fares and we're looking at all of the different avenues, including bus passes,
reduced costs for people that travel or utilize the bus transportation. The next
testifier is Edel Baguio-Larena, followed by Colin Hanlon.
MS. BAGUIO-LARENA: Good evening. Thank you so much for your time, and I'm
very happy that I was able to listen to the testimonies of the members of this
community It's very inspiring to hear how people are dedicated and committed
to work together despite the financial difficulties. My name is
Edel Baguio-Larena and I work with Maui Family Support Services, the Early
Head Start Program. And first of all, again I want to thank you for all, for all your
continued support to the Early Head Start Program, and I'm here again tonight to
urge you to continue to support this program. We provide home visiting services
to pregnant women and to families with children 0 to 36 months or 0 to 3 years
old, and also we provide comprehensive child development services. It's the
center based, free child care to families who are income eligible and who are
families who are receiving financial assistance, who are homeless, and infants and
toddlers who are in foster care. We provide services Countywide, we're here on
Maui, Molokai, and Lanai. And, you know, we've heard so much about please
don't cut the budget, and we are aware about the financial difficulties. But Early
Head Start Program, a service like this, is what families need at this point. I really
appreciate what Elsie said about don't cut the budget for the elderly and the
children, because it's what we need when we have this difficult time. And
personally, I'm a parent of twins and they're young and if I don't have a certain,
if...I, I can just see how families who are going to school or working if they don't
have services like Early Head Start, I don't know where they will turn to. Cost
for childcare right now can range from 700 to more than $1,000. So your support
in continuing Early Head Start is very appreciated. Thank you for your time.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you. Colin Hanlon, followed by Marty McMahon.
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MR. HANLON: Good evening, Budget Chair Pontanilla, Council Members. My name
is Colin Hanlon and I am the Chief Professional Officer with the Boys and Girls
Clubs here on Maui. I just want to let you know, know that I do not envy your
jobs that you have this year of budget, of balancing this budget. But I do have
some, see some challenges with the Mayor's proposed budget. The Youth Center
pot of money which you guys see as just one pot has been scheduled or has been
budgeted for a 10 percent decrease. This is after last year; we took an 8 percent
decrease as well. Speaking on behalf of all the Youth Centers, I have a few words
to say, but, but, but specifically for the Boys and Girls Clubs, we've always been
very, very prudent and come to you guys and come to the Council with a
barebones budget. The Coun..., the County money only, only is 51 percent of our
operating budget. Okay. We were told to go out and diversify back when
Alice Lee took over Housing and Human Concerns, and we took that very
serious. . . --(change of tape, start 2a)-- . . .that the County of Maui has lit on fire
and told us to jump through. And we honestly feel like to, to be a good partner
and make sure all the youths of Maui have a safe place to go we have to make
sure that we pay attention to the request. We've done so. We have a $1 6 million
budget. We, we did layoffs last year. There is. . .because we come to you and we
don't bloat our budget and we don't sort of inflate it, we come to you with a
barebones budget. Fixed costs are going to stay the same. My insurance agent is,
is doing a great job shopping this stuff around for me, but those costs have not
seen that much savings. Electricity has not seen savings. All these fixed costs, I
can't play with. The only thing we have left is what we value the most at the
Boys and Girls Clubs. We have wonderful facilities thanks to our, our
relationships with the County. We have best top-of-the-line equipment 'cause we
believe our kids deserve to have the best. We have Best Practice programs with
training for our staff and training for board members. Okay. We have all of these
things, but it means very little if you don't have the right people in place.
Personnel is the only place left we have to cut. Okay. If we are to cut
again...right now we have very successful programs. We're serving 70 kids a day
in Paukukalo, over 100 kids a day in Lahaina, in different areas. If we cut those
staff, our ratios will go to 50-to-1. We cannot function at 50-to-1 ratios. Our
bylaws say 20-to-1, okay. That we are no longer in a position where we can
promise to do more for less. There is a breaking point. We're, you know, we had
our board meeting today and we discussed all of these, all of these things. But
really, there is a place where you have to say we have to do less for less. Whether
that means hours of operation, capping membership, doing furloughs, all these
things that are very distasteful. We are going to continue-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
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MR. HANLON: --to fight and go out--I'll wrap up--and try to look for additional
funding sources to make up for this. I'm not saying that you guys can balance
this budget without the cut to us, the Youth Centers. But if it does happen, I need
to make sure that we're being a good partner and letting you know that there's
repercussions on this, the communities are gonna feel it, and we're trying to make
sure that the families and the kids don't feel it, because 71 percent of our
membership is that low or very low income. Okay. We, the mission statement
which says we go out to disadvantaged kids is not just a mission statement, it's
truly who we go after. So, if you have any questions, I'll be here to answer.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Colin?
Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good evening, Mr. Hanlon. Have you folks looked at
the option as well, instead of letting your personnel go if you don't get the
appropriations that you need, maybe reducing wages or/and hours rather than
letting bodies go?
MR. HANLON: Yeah. In last year with the 8 percent the adminis..., the entire
administrative team took a pay cut before we went and did layoffs. The
leadership team doesn't, doesn't believe. . .and me, first, that we lead from in
front. So we, we took a cut first. We were able to build back many of those
positions through individual donors last year. We went out and said this isn't
working. And you have to understand when we went through a job classification
in. . .and job classification and compensation plan with, with consultants and with
the Boys and Girls Club National to put our salary ranges correctly, okay, we've
gone through the process. The same, couple of the same people that were on the
Salary Commission for the County sit on my board and went through this process.
We made sure we were in line with what we're doing and we always lead from,
from in front. Having said that, it's really difficult to go back up that chart when
it's time to start cutting back on hours of furloughing people because certain
funding from Federal government, from individual donors that is earmarked for a
certain site goes specifically to the people who were trained to deliver
deliverables on contracts. So even though they was supposed to be the first one
out, they're also connected to $100,000 from the Feds to, to do Smart Girls or
Smart Moves training. So if we lose that person, we lose additional funding. It's
not a straight-line thing, it's, it's, it's kind of everything is intertwined with our
budget.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I see. Okay. Thank you.
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MR. HANLON: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Seeing none,
thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Marty McMahon, followed by Paul Mark.
MR. McMAHON: Aloha, my name is Marty McMahon, and for seven of the last ten
years I have run Maui County's Electronics Recycling Program. The last couple
of years it has been handled through Habitat For Humanity. The grant runs
through the recycling section of the Department of Environmental Management,
and unlike probably just about any other nonprofit or program you're going to
hear tonight, we are actively working toward our own demise. We are in fact
approximately 18 months away from seeing that happen. We've been working
for several years on many fronts to see that happen, and we got a big help through
the State law, which I'm sure many of you are aware of, which began in January
and is being phased in more slowly than we want. But we will be out of business
without detriment to the environment in about 18 months. Our grant request this
year has been put into the recycling section, it is an 11 percent cut over last year
with no loss of hours or services, and that's after an 8 percent cut of the previous
year. The County pays for the actual activity of collecting what the Federal
government has declared hazardous waste. But one of the things that I'm most
proud of is that the program has many ancillary benefits. We have a great group
of volunteers who refurbish computer systems. We are currently giving out
approximately ten full computer systems a month to local churches, nonprofits
and schools. And we are running a new program this spring where we are
educating 50 high school students and MCC students in computer repair and they
walk away with their own computers. These are for low-income families that
don't have computers at their house. I have a sheet, which I will leave for you,
you can read it at your leisure, it's a single page, which I prepared for the
recycling section. One of the things we're doing is we're working toward an
actual technical band of the electronics on the Maui landfills. Right now there
isn't one, but we've had over the last ten years such great support from the Maui
community Anybody in the last ten years whose had to get rid of computer parts
and had to wait in line for sometimes 45 minutes over at the old stadium parking
lot. And I, I never heard really any complaints, people were just wonderful. Now
we had the ongoing program, we run it every week, weekend day and a week day,
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and as I say our whole focus is to wind down. We are shifting the responsibility
through the State law as well as through other programs to the manufacturers and
to the shippers of the electronics themselves. So, I'm hopeful that the money that
we requested will stay in the budget--I know you have to review it--in part
because in the next year we will handle more electronic waste than we have in the
last ten. So it would be, it would be bad to drop the ball at this point-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. McMAHON: --and see all of that let go, too. I'm happy to answer any questions.
But if I have 30 seconds left, I wanted to kind of take off my e-cycling hat and
just put on a citizen of this community As many people who live on Maui do, I, I
wear many hats to make ends meet. One of the things I do is write a lot of grants
for a lot of nonprofits. I'm very involved in the nonprofit industry. And I don't
know if you've heard this or not, but I'm going to impart it to you, which is that
there is a lot of pain out there, you've heard some of it, but when you see some of
the people who testify tonight like the wheelers, to my mind that is why
government exists in the first place. I've got a car and house and two good legs.
And we have put you there in a very hard spot, but we put you there for a reason,
it's because we trust you and the people out there in the community do trust you.
MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MR. McMAHON: So make the hard decisions and let us know what they are and we'll
live with 'em. I'm a middle-aged Irishman, which means I'm an optimist, I have
to be. . .particularly with this head of hair. And we're going to get through this,
we just got to get through it for a couple years. So thanks for listening, tell us
what we need to do.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I just have a question for you.
MR. McMAHON: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Where is your recycling area?
MR. McMAHON: The reception area is at 970 Lower Main Street in Wailuku, almost
across from Home Maid Bakery, and we are established at the Habitat For
Humanity restore warehouse, and the biggest reason for that is because all the
zoning was in place. Since we handle hazardous waste, we have to follow certain
regulations. It was just wonderful for them to take us in there.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Is that five days, five days of operation or . . . (inaudible).. .
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MR. McMAHON: No, we operate on Tuesdays and Saturdays and believe it or not,
that's really all that's required of this community Even though we, we handle up
to 50 tons of electronic waste every month, we do so in just 32 hours of
functioning. Now that doesn't include all the hours we put in to refurbish the
machines and everything, but the County doesn't pay for any of that. It doesn't
pay for the classes, it doesn't pay for the furbishment [sic], it doesn't pay for any
of that. It only pays for the reception. We, we receive those goods and then when
we can, we turn those goods into something useful, and that's the only thing I'm
going to miss when the program's over 'cause we won't be able to be producing
these systems.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you again.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Paul Mark.
MR. MARK: Aloha, good evening, my name is Paul Mark and I'm here tonight
representing Best Buddies program-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Can you, yeah. . .speak in the mic.
MR. MARK: Okay, how's that?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
MR. MARK: I'm a volunteer Board Member for Best Buddies, and I wanted to come
here tonight to ask you to continue supporting and funding Best Buddies. You
know, no one really understands and can appreciate a life with a disability. And,
you know, for the sake of time or when you have a child with a disability, you
automatically become a part of the largest minority in this country, which is the
disabled. And you spend, and then you spend the rest of your life, you know,
fighting for your child's civil rights and dealing with all the prejudice, challenges,
and obstacles that come with that. And it's programs like Best Buddies that
provide the opportunities for people and students with disabilities to be
themselves, to be appreciated for the gifts that they have, to be seen and to show
that they too can contribute, be contributing members to the community Best
Buddies provides opportunities like this past Saturday at Maui High School where
Best Buddies put on a dance where over 150 people, teachers, students, disabled
and non-disabled were able to gather and enjoy each others company. Our son's
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Best Buddy who calls him weekly so that he feels like he's a friend and even,
more importantly, how his Best Buddy has helped him to meet other non-disabled
students that he wouldn't necessarily meet. But, you know, tonight I would just
want you to kind of look at it from a different perspective--you know, we're here
and we think and look in terms of our disabled population. But I want you to look
in terms of Best Buddies as how it helps you, okay, you, the general public. You
know, as a personal testimony, when my son was in elementary school in the
State of Florida, I forced that school system to service him in a regular education
class K through 5, and every teacher K through 5 at the end of the year said the
same thing, and I'll paraphrase it, The class, the students in this class benefitted
far more from your son being in the class than he benefited. Okay. When we
came to Maui, okay, I was able to get him a job at Roy's folding napkins and
when Roy's closed, I was like crushed, how am I going to tell my son that he just
lost his first job? Okay. He said, no worries, I'm going to go work at Outbacks,
you know, and the next day he comes home with the manager's business card and
tells me he has a job, okay. That doesn't happen unless, one, you allow people
with disabilities to have the opportunity, but, more importantly, we need to also
educate the public that our, our population of citizens with-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. MARK: --disabilities is one of the greatest resources that we have. And so in
conclusion, I'm just going to ask you, you know, to continue funding, funding
Best Buddies so that students can grow and citizens can understand that children
with disabilities or citizens with disabilities can contribute to society and to our
community Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, thank you. Lani [sic] Sheppard.
MS. SHEPPARD: Hi, good evening, my name is Jani Sheppard--and that's okay, no
worries--and I'm the CEO with Maui Family Support Services, and I'm here to, to
thank you but to talk about Early Head Start. As Edel mentioned earlier, she
commented that it was, it was, it was good to hear the testimony tonight, and I just
want to echo that because it, it is great listening to the testimony of all the
incredible work that's happening in this community and the passion that people
have for all the different services that we have for our community As far as
Early Head Start goes, I was at a proclamation this morning, because it's Child
Abuse Prevention Awareness Month, and sat there with a group of, a large group
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of people. And I thought it was really quite ironic, not that we had the people in
the room, but that at the same time I had spent late last night doing more
testimony, because the Child Abuse Prevention Services are being cut from the
State budget. So, I just thought that was a little bit interesting. But we still had
that great passion and commitment in the room. For one of the, the things that I
was so grateful for is that in Maui County, which I think is probably one of the
most generous counties when it comes to, to social services, but in Maui County
we did, we were able to say that, you know, that we support, that we support
children. I know that this budget process at every level is incredibly difficult for
everyone and including those of us who have to try and administer these programs
with letters coming every day about what else has been cut. But we are working
really hard to make it work and as someone else said earlier, I think that we can
do that. For Early Head Start, for the pregnant and parenting families 0 to 3,
being able to provide for them specialist services, but also allow them to be able
to go to work and to go to school and, and, and provide that service for them so
that they, they can do that. Some of the things that we're doing--we're asking you
to continue to support Early Head Start--and some of the things that we're doing,
just to let you know is, we several years ago reduced our even admin fee. We
only ask, we only ask 5 percent admin from any of our grants, so that the most
money that we can, can go into direct services. And what do we have to do? We,
obviously we have to find money to make that work elsewhere, but wherever we
can we, we do that, and particularly with, with our County grant. We have closed
our offices on Fridays. So we work, we still work. We work in the field, we
work from home, but we've saved money by not paying electricity and air
conditioning and, and leaving computers on for the day. Some of the other things
that we've done is we've asked for a partial waiver for this grant that we're, that
you're supporting, the Early Head Start grant, and by doing that, that saved about
$67,000 that we don't have to come up with. . . (inaudible). . .through the ARRA
funds or with the Federal grant, so asking in other places how to, how to support
our community The support that you have provided for Early Head Start, I've
shared this with you, but it's leveraging a lot of money. At this point it's
leveraging about $730,000, and that's. . .I think that's a lot for 45. So it's, that's,
it's wonderful. And when we were submitting our application for, for ARRA
funds, that we were able to say that where we're getting that support is our
County, is Maui County that's providing that support, and I know that that made
that application really strong and allowed us to be able to serve some more
families. So we're going to keep working with what we have to work with, and as
people been saying it, you know, at one point, some point we're going to have to
do less with less-MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
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MS. SHEPPARD: --but we're trying really hard to maintain and to, to serve, to serve the
families. So thank you so much for your, for your support to do that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Just a fast question. You say that you're going to
take advantage of some of the ARRA funding?
MS. SHEPPARD: Yeah. We just received a, we just received some ARRA funding for
Early Head Start and. . .but that was to do an expansion. So we were able to
provide services Molokai, Lanai, where we were not before, and then also
Lahaina, we're doing a, a partnership with the Resource Center. So they gave us
the space and then we bring in the, the service.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. So what Department supported that?
MS. SHEPPARD: Administration for Children and Families.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department of Housing and Human Concerns.
MS. SHEPPARD: Housing. Yes, yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MS. SHEPPARD: Yes. Sorry.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, good. Thank you.
MS. SHEPPARD: Uh-huh. You're welcome.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you again.
MS. SHEPPARD: Thank you so much.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The next testifier is Paul Laub, and as soon as Mr. Laub
completes his testimony and answering questions, the Chair is going to call for a
short recess to stretch our legs and do our personal business. Paul, go ahead.
MR. LAUB: Aloha ahiahi mai kakou.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aloha.
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MR. LAUB: Paul Laub speaking here. First of all, as President of the Maui County
Veterans Council, I want to thank you very much for continuing your support of,
of our programs. I want to change the itinerary a little bit and bring up the
thought that this may not be our last tight year. The depression went from '29 to
`42, that was 13 years. So just taxing and increasing taxing is going to hurt more
and more every year. So let's go to another thought and that thought might be
making money. Now a couple years ago we were able to put through a Bed and
Breakfast ordinance and that's helped, but we've been very, very busy this year
and haven't been able to do a TVR ordinance. But I want to give you some
figures from my TVR that I had in 2007, as a eight-months. During those eight
months we produced $8,000 in TAT and GE tax, but more important than that
was that the maid service was $6,000; that the commissions that went to the
people who set those things up was 17,700; the gardener got 1,650; and the
maintenance was 7,450. So that's $32,800 that went directly into the economy
that didn't go after that. Now we can, we can make money come back, produce
our money to solve our problems. The first and best way is to get a TVR
ordinance that everyone can live with. Now I'm going to just end this really
simply. I have been told by Puamana--now remember my figures--that from the
GE tax, and the TA..., the TAT tax was $8,000, six times that was the figures that
went to the public. Puamana has told me that if they were allowed to do TVRs,
they would be paying between their TAT and their GET tax $1,800,000, and if
their figures in there were with the same as mine, six times that would go into our
economy. Thank you kindly.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Paul. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you again. The Chair is going to call a short recess and we
will return on this clock at 8:05. When we get back, the testifier, the first testifier
will be David Jones. This meeting is in recess till 8:05. . . .(gavel). . .
RECESS: 7:56 p.m.
RECONVENE: 8:05 p.m.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is
now reconvened. The next testifier is David Jones. . .David Jones, followed by
Davilla Riddle.
MR. JONES: Good evening, my name is David Jones and I come to testify on behalf of
Maui Family Support Services, the Early Head Start Program. And this is my
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daughter Dasia(?), she's part of the Kupukupu Early Development Program. And,
and we've been with Maui Family Support for a long time, approximately about
seven years, because we have five kids and three of the five went through Maui
Family Support from the time they was in the hospital, with all the home visits;
and it provided us a lot of good information and techniques to use to help with
development of our childs [sic] physically and mentally and to help them, help
understand when they're ready to do certain things, like if they're ready to learn
how to walk or understand when they're ready to do something, what signs to
look for, you know, what, how to better take care of our child. And, you know,
the Kupukupu Services that she's in, it helps us 'cause me and my wife work, we
both have day jobs and some days my days are longer, like I work from 8:00 to
5:00, but some days I have to work later. So with the kids in school, luckily we
got those in Boys and Girls Club and her in the day care. My wife can work and
she can go to her classes at MCC 'cause she's trying to improve on her life, and
it's easier for us so we don't have to take off work or we don't have to ask my
mother-in-law to watch, watch the baby all the time 'cause, you know, she already
has her issues and her health issues and a recent passing of her husband. So it's
like a lot of stress on her to have to watch the kids. Plus furlough Fridays is, you
know, that's enough of a problem, about three Fridays out of every month, she
gets all the kids to watch while we got, we have to work 'cause we gotta have the
money to pay bills and, you know, keep our other kids in their programs and our
other daughter in preschool. You know, that's hard enough paying rent and
paying some of those things. So it's like with Maui Family Support we had, we
have the tools in place that help us a lot, with a lot of other parents, you know,
with the fatherhood involvement programs that they do, getting a lot of fathers,
you know, with children, showing the father support in the kids, not just all
mothers all the time. So that the dads actually do. . .I'm saying besides work and
then come home, eat and then sleep-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. JONES: --we actually care about the kids and what they're doing, the programs
they're in, and things they need in the future. So to keep the funding for Maui
Family and Support is important for people that can't afford babysitters for each
kid, you know, 700, $800 or more, plus rent, car payments, food--you know,
everybody can't get the same help everywhere. 'Cause that's it, we got five kids,
only three of them in the program. The fourth one didn't get in because we
moved back home to North Carolina, which I was from, and they didn't have the
quality program like this to help us out. So we came back and it was easier for
the other kids to get through and get started, development earlier and, you know,
help pushing them through. So it would be great to keep the funding for them
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`cause it, it helps a lot. I recommend it to a lot of my co-workers that ask about
things they need for their kids.
MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MR. JONES: And I tell 'em call Maui, Maui Family Support, they're, they're great.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you very much for being here.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Davilla Riddle, followed by Tawny Yarborough.
MS. RIDDLE: Hello, my name is Davilla Riddle. I'm an 8 thgrade science teacher at
Kalama Intermediate and I'm here to speak for Maui Economic Development
Board, especially the different tech career programs that they have and especially
their Women In Technology program. I can speak kind of firsthand, the last two
years I have been involved in taking students to different programs that they have
that Introduce the Girls [sic] to Engineering Day and also their Middle School
Tech Careers. And I think, most importantly, they bring in the highest quality
professionals from the County, from the community to introduce them to our
students, and so that these students can see the similarities between their lives and
these professionals' lives, and, and it gives them hope and gives them something,
you know, role models to look at. They also offer many different opportunities
for girls especially to get into and being introduced to science technology,
engineering and mathematics programs, and that's especially important when
sometimes in school girls aren't as interested in getting into either building
bridges or building robots, but they introduce them into different challenges and
different competitions so that they can kind of get their feet wet and realize that it
really is a lot of fun. And lastly, I just want to say they really have a very highly
qualified staff and are always very supportive. I know several times we haven't
had the funding to go to some of their events, but last minute they've, I'm sure,
squeezed out the extra coins and pennies and have been able to provide
transportation so that all of our students that wanted to go can go. And I think
most important for me I saw the benefit of MEDB was when I took a group of
students to Introduce a Girl to Engineering Day, and one student particularly
went, she was one of my low-producing students, she didn't have very good
grades, she didn't have any kind of career plans for the future; when you asked
her what do you want to do after high school, she didn't want to go to college.
After going to their Introduce a Girl to Engineering Day and also their Middle
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School Tech Careers, they have them fill out a survey of what they would like to
do in the future or what careers interest them, and afterwards she had put, you
know, before on the pre-survey she put no plans after high school, and by the end
of, after attending those two programs she put that she wanted to go to college.
So, I definitely think it's important because these students are getting
opportunities that they don't otherwise get in school and especially MEDB
promotes them coming back here to Maui or to Hawaii-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. RIDDLE: --and getting involved back in their community That's it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you.
MS. RIDDLE: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Tawny Yarborough, followed by Margaret Sutrov.
MS. YARBOROUGH: Aloha, I'm Tawny Yarborough. I'm speaking on behalf of
MEO. . . --(change of tape, start 2b)-- . . .the Head Start Program has helped me
and my family immensely over the past three years. Each of my three children
have attended Haiku Head Start, and I've served on their Policy Council board, so
I understand how important your funding is. Currently, I'm a paraprofessional
teacher at Haiku School and I send my youngest child to Haiku Head Start. As a
single mother, this program has given me an opportunity to return to work and has
given my child the opportunity to develop in a safe, caring, and educational
environment. Without this program, it would be a struggle for me to afford
childcare. I am deeply satisfied with the quality of childcare and the 4-to-1
student-teacher ratio is magnificent. They're providing morning and noon meals
and they have a daily dental hygiene routine, which I think is excellent. This
program deeply impacts Maui's families who are struggling with early childhood
daycare, and it's very important to continue funding the full-day program for our
working families of Maui County. Mahalo.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you very much. Next testifier is Margaret Sutrov, followed by
Lopaka Kia.
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MS. SUTROV: Aloha, my name is Maggie Sutrov and whenever someone laments,
laments that the state of Maui publics schools here, I always point to the Maui
Arts and Cultural Center as a shining light in the darkness. And I give my
heartfelt thanks to the County Council for their support in the past for all of their
amazing programs and hope that we can keep these things going. I grew up
Upcountry and at age 23 I opened my own art gallery right here in Paia, the
Sutrov Gallery, and now I teach art through the MACC and also directly in the
public schools where I see the far-reaching effects that the MACC's programs
have had. And today I was at the MACC, we had a Can Do Day and this is a
program that reaches elementary schools throughout Maui County. I've even
been to Lanai and done the program there. In one day the students experience
drama, dance, and visual arts. The MACC has had over a quarter million of
Maui's students come to their place to experience the arts. What other
organization has affected that many Maui students in just one of the arts, yet alone
dance, drama, music, visual arts, all of these things? And so today I was painting
with Kahului Elementary School first graders, and the end product that we ended
up with was 75 happy, focused, and engaged first graders in love with learning.
The teacher told me that the project that we did, which was painting and using
shapes and such, related directly what they were doing in math class, and she was
going to take that project and do it again with them to reinforce what they're
learning in the classroom. This happens all the time. When students learn
through the arts, they're excited about learning and when students learn through
the arts, learning has meaning and it sticks. The arts are necessary in our schools
and the MACC puts them there. The MACC also teaches the teachers to use the
arts as a learning tool. That way students learn about science by dancing a
description of photosynthesis. They learn about history by acting out the hope
and fear the pilgrims felt when they landed at Plymouth Rock. They learn about
math by drawing shapes, and this is all very practical, believe it or not. When
students learn in this dynamic way, their scores on a standardized test go up, it
sticks. . .it has meaning and it sticks. The arts are an integral learning tool, and
there is another reason that the arts are necessary for Maui's children. We are
educating them for a world-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. SUTROV: --we can't right now imagine. There's no textbook that can prepare you
for the technology, job markets, and global challenges that are ten years away.
They will need to be able to imagine, adapt, and invent solutions. The best tools
you can put in their hands are the creative skills learned through the arts. These
are also the very tools desired by today's growing job net market and they are
going to be mandatory in tomorrow's job market. So finally one last note about
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the MACC. They accomplish amazing things. They walk the talk and put their
creativities to work. They stretch the impact that they're finding to every school
in the County, oftentimes every teacher and every student. And so keep their
funding in the budget and you'll create amazing things for all of Maui County.
And if you want-MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MS. SUTROV: --dynamic, solution-fmding, passionate, happy citizens, give their
learning meaning and support the MACC's programs and give them the arts.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? You
know, on the Can Do Days, each school go to the MACC once a year, twice a
year, three times a year?
MS. SUTROV: Each grade generally gets to go once.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Once?
MS. SUTROV: We wish we could get them more. . . . (chuckle).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And the grade levels?
MS. SUTROV: Well, each grade level and sometimes, sometimes it doesn't happen.
Right now with furloughs some grades are having to cancel, but we're taking
them as many as we can. My understanding is that if the funding goes down,
we're going to have to cut our Can Do Days in half, which means hitting a lot less
kids, half the kids or this Can Do Days could disappear all completely, and that's
a lot of experiences these kids will miss.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. SUTROV: Thank you very much.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Lopaka Kia. . .followed by Sarah McLane.
MR. KIA: Aloha, my name is Lopaka Kia. I work for the. . .testifying for the West Maui
Mountains Watershed Partnership. But basically what we do is we help to protect
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West Maui's native rainforest and we help to protect a wide variety of flora and
fauna, some of which exists only in West Maui Mountains and nowhere else in
the world. And we do this by helping to control the spread of alien or non-native
plant and animal species, and what we do helps to maintain the forest and its
ability to sustain Maui County's water supply. One part of the West Maui
Mountains I wanted to talk about today, and some of you might know this, is the
Na Wai Eha, commonly referred to as the wai side. The Na Wai Eha consist of
four perennial streams, which from north to south are Waihee, Waiehu, Iao, and
Waikapu. These four streams supported one of the largest growing kalo
communities in the State. It was a source of power, a source of mana. . .which it
is still today. And, and being raised, born and raised in the islands before I started
this job, I had no idea of the div..., the diverse forest that is right in our backyard,
and without, without this forest our. . .we wouldn't be able to create the amount of
water that we do today. And without the Na Wai Eha, those four streams running,
half of the people on this island wouldn't be able to live basically. And, you
know, with, with a lot of these budget cutbacks, we're, we're going to be in a
heavy setback because there's still a lot to be done in areas of restoration, to
actually start to restore native landscapes in the wild. And, and another place
we're lacking in funds is in public outreach, which I believe is very important
because without. . .if people don't know in the public, then just like me before I,
before I worked here for two years, I had no idea. And without us being in the
public and being able to outreach to them, they won't know what's in their
backyard. The diversity, the diversity of the West Maui Mountains is very
unique, very unique place and people need to know about it. So basically in
conclusion, I just want to thank you for your support in the past and just ask that
you will give us the continued support so that we can continue to sustain West
Maui's natural resources. Mahalo.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Lopaka, thank you, and do you know how
much the State is going to cut you guys back this year? 'Cause we heard it from
the east end when we were out there, and I would assume you guys would be
something close.
MR. KIA: Right, we're actually getting cut back 25 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: From the State?

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 31, 2010 (Makawao-Haiku-Paia District)

MR. KIA: From the State. Originally, I'm not positive, but it's roughly we get about
100,000 from, from them, but we use that money also to get matching.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Leveraging the money, yeah.
MR. KIA: Leveraging matching grants as well. So without that funding, then the
matching fundings cannot be. So it's, it's a, it's a trickle effect. So everywhere
we get cut, it gets cut after that, so.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: How many, how many of you work on the west
side?
MR. KIA: Right now we have a crew of seven-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Seven?
MR. KIA: --which we also have two AmeriCorps, so there's five of us that work for the
west and then two AmeriCorps that we train as well.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Lopaka, and keep up the good work.
MR. KIA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any more questions? Seeing none. . .Sarah McLane,
followed by MaryLee Greenlee.
MS. McLANE: Hello, my name is Sarah McLane and I am the Program and Data
Assistant for the West Maui Mountains Watershed Partnership. Actually just
wanted to make a quick correction for Lopaka. There's actually nine of us when
you include the AmeriCorps that we have. Our partnership is actually one of nine
similar watershed alliances throughout the State that protects the Native Hawaiian
forest that capture and conserve the vital source of water for our island. Acting as
the Fiscal Assistant for our partnership, I oversee our expenditures throughout the
year. As a recipient of County of Maui funds in past years, I urge you to consider
the breadth of opportunity you have to protect our natural resources in Maui by
continuing your support of our program. For the past ten years, County funds has
helped us to protect more than 21,000 acres from destructive feral ungulates that
disrupt the natural functions of the watershed. Funds from the County have
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helped us to protect habitat for more than 170 rare and endangered species within
our partnership lands. Just last week actually a new species was found and named
that is found nowhere else in the world, except for West Maui, not even elsewhere
on this island. As the Fiscal Manager, I can see where our funds go and I know
how much it costs. I know how much it costs to build a fence to preemptively
strike against destructive axis deer who are now honing in our watershed lands,
but I also know that by not building this fence you can expect to see immediate
and extensive damage to the structure of the mountain that will take us years to
rebuild, if at all. I see how we fund research, on-the-ground management and
support to hinder the advancement of habitat-modifying weeds, such as
strawberry guava and clidemia, weeds that have the ability to take over the
entirety of West Maui, leaving little-to-no native plant cover. I have worked with
private businesses to develop advanced technology to help our on-the-ground
surveys to be more efficient when searching for invasions. I have written the
checks to buy gear and supplies for our crew of 9 people, as they work tirelessly
over 50,000 acres--9 people, 50,000 acres--with considerable challenges, such as
40-mile-an-hour winds on knife ridges, days of soaking rain, and extreme
temperatures. Because I have seen the money that it takes to do the work that we
do, I realize how vital it is to continue fiscal support for the protection of our most
precious resources. Most people would not work in the conditions that we do for
the pay that we get, but more than 80 percent of Maui's DWS customers rely on
our West Maui water, including residents, businesses, and ag all the way here in
Paia. Because we partner with other hardworking State and local agencies, we are
able to provide protection and care for our Native Hawaiian forests and the source
of our water. We, like many other important agencies, have begun to see budget
cuts from all angles, and we now face higher competition for outside grant
monies.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. McLANE: I urge you to consider the consequences of additional financial cuts to
our organization and others like ours. We depend on County funds to provide
direct assistance to projects throughout West Maui as well as acting as a match for
larger Federal grants that can sustain our work for years to come. There are nine
of us on the West Maui Mountains Watershed Partnership staff, but I would bet
that everyone in this room in some shape or form is dependent on the work that
we do every day. Our source of water is finite and we should not take the native
forests' and watersheds' function for granted. I know it's really hard going after
all of these wonderful organizations and, and the children and people that have a
lot of specific needs, but, you know, water is the essential source of everything
that we do. And, you know, it sounds like oh, we're just protecting the pretty
trees, but it's a lot more than that. And I know in the past the County Council's

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 31, 2010 (Makawao-Haiku-Paia District)

actually passed the watershed resolution that says, you know, we want to keep
funding important watershed programs like this. So we really just appreciate all
of the work that you guys do for us and-MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MS. McLANE: --your continued support. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you again.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: MaryLee Greenlee, followed by Justin Allen.
MS. GREENLEE: My name is MaryLee Greenlee, and I'm a member of the Board of
Directors of Keiki Kokua, and I would like to thank Chairman Pontanilla and the
Members of the Budget and Finance Committee for your time and consideration.
I want to share some statistics with you concerning foster children. It's sad to
think, but do you know there's more than a half million children and youth in the
U.S. foster care system? No matter where you go, small town, big city, or a small
island in the Pacific, these numbers reflect the obstacles these children face.
Seventy-eight percent of foster children are more likely to drop out of school and
they are at a much higher risk of incarceration; furthermore, with few skills, their
job opportunities are pretty bleak. Worst still is the fact that 30 to 40 percent of
all youth emancipated from foster care are homeless within their first year of
release. These children are our future and we must help them build a brighter
tomorrow. Our work has just begun and we need to continue to move forward
with our services and not retreat. I just want to remind you that Keiki Kokua is
the practical resource that supports foster and adoptive parents to successfully
raise and nurture the children in our care. There is such a need in our community
for the resources we have to offer, and I ask you to please don't cut our funding. I
ask that you please maintain the line-item budget recommendation for Keiki
Kokua through to the final budget resolution to help these, our most
disadvantaged youth. Mahalo and God bless you all.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you.
MS. GREENLEE: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Justin Allen, followed by Victor Reyes.
MR. NISHIOKA-ALLEN: Good evening, Council Members. My name is
Justin Nishioka-Allen, and I am a student at Hui Malama Learning Center, and
Hui Malama is a good school because they teach us how to stay green. The
programs are fun and the people get along well. Hui Malama is a nonprofit
school where we have an organic garden, and they encourage us to eat healthy. I
appreciate Hui Malama because they help me be a better person, and we have
youth services where we learn about our Hawaiian culture and sex education and
video editing. Another thing I like about Hui Malama is that we have small
classes. We only have five students in a class and we often go on field trips. At
Hui Malama I learned how to be green. Thank you and have a great evening.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, thank you. Victor Reyes, followed by
Bryan Zoellner.
MR. REYES: Aloha and good evening, Maui County Council Members. It's a privilege
and an honor to be standing here representing Hui Malama Learning Centers of
Maui. Hui Malama Learning Centers of Maui has been supported by the Maui
County Council for a little bit over 30 years now, and it originally started as a
place where pregnant teenage mothers who are not allowed in school, they could
go to someplace and get their GED. And it's evolved 30 years to a place that's
more than just where you get your GED. Hui Malama is much more than just a
school. We serve a really diverse community of youth. And it's, it's hard. . .you
guys have a hard position right now 'cause this meeting's all about resources and
limited resources, but I think the thing that echoes here with the kids is that the
kids are one of the most important resources that Maui has because they're the
future. And what you need to look at right now is that everybody has taken cuts.
This organization has taken cuts, we've had layoffs, we've tightened our belts, but
what we did find is we need to change. We can't just stay satisfied and
complacent with people handing us money. We have to be innovative, we have to
take fresh perspectives and new angles into how we service these youth and how
we reach them. And I think that's what Hui Malama's trying to do right now. I
heard a comment where we have the best computers, and that's awesome. Hui
Malama does not have the best computers. We are running on a shoestring
budget if at all, and we might have enough money to buy one really good
computer, but what we'll do with the rest of the money that's really tight, we'll
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buy a van and which we did. And instead of doing a lesson on the Piilani Heiau
over at Google Earth, we'll take them there, which we have, and, and learning
about Na Wai Eha, which is a really important resource. Instead of just a, a
lesson book which they do in class, we take them to the resources. We want them
to be engaged in the community and that's what we're trying to do. Speaking
on. . .it's, it's kind of weird coming, standing here in front of one of my former
teachers, Mr. Molina, at Kalama School and just to know that it really, it might
take us a year, it might take a semester, all it might take is one really good teacher
at one moment, one period in class to help change the lives of these kids, and
that's what all of these youth service programs are trying to do. So in a sense I'm
not really trying to be here to compete for that money with the other youth service
centers because I think it's a great thing that we have all these youth service
centers. It's needed for this community There's not a lot of opportunities for
these kids. And to be able to go out into the community and provide these
different services and, and take different looks at, it's more than just academics
for these kids. It's, it changes a whole person socially, mentally, and teaching
about kuleana, responsibility. Engaging in different partnerships, that's very
important. And, and-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. REYES: --if you are lacking in one thing--like my parents told me to work hard. If
you're, if you're not making enough money with that one job, then you know
what, go out and get two jobs. So that's what we're trying to do. We, we're not,
we're not doing. . .we're not able to stand up on our own two feet, then we're
going to go out and partner with the community, and that's what we need to do.
That's how we're going to get through this budget deficit. You have to be
innovative and that's what we're trying to do. We're partnering with the
Kanehoalani Salvation Army Boys Home, which is where Justin comes from;
we're partnering with Paia Teens-On-Call; we're partnering with the kupuna
intergenerational cooking program at MCC; we do beach cleanups. We're just
really trying to get these kids engaged and, and to know that you can't see
immediate change, as Mr. Molina would know, you don't see the immediate
change in the classroom, but you do see the changes 10, 15 years down the road in
the community So for me, hopefully, just even with 15 minutes of or 3 hours of
Justin-MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MR. REYES: --waiting here and seeing how this process is important, that he is the
future and, and to know that this is where the funding is going to and that one day
he could be up here talking to someone great in the community and to show the
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future that, you know, we need, we need this money, but we have to look at
different ways to do it. And if you cut funding from certain programs, it's going
to be very hard to service these kids. We really, really need it. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Mr. Reyes?
Mr. Molina, you got anything?
AUDIENCE: . . .(chuckle). . .
MR. REYES: . . . (chuckle). . . Oh, here we go, 8 th grade all over again.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Well, thank you very much, Victor, for your--you
learned your lessons very well-MR. REYES: Yes, I did.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --at those days at Kalama School. You've made
it. . .you've done a great job advocating for Hui Malama and, you know, in
your. . .I believe you also work for Akaku as well-MR. REYES: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --so you've been out there in the community So keep
up the good work. And like you say, I used to tell you guys, you see the benefit in
the long term, down the road.
MR. REYES: Definitely.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So you did a good job. Thank you.
MR. REYES: Mahalo for your time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. REYES: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Next testifier is Joseph Brunette, followed by
Jacqueline Simone Ambrose.
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MR. BRUNETTE: Good evening, my name is Joseph Brunette. I work primarily with
Youth with a Mission, but tonight I'm here on behalf of Keiki Kokua to just
testify to what they're doing in the community. As Youth with a Mission, we
partner with them in the community of Haiku, but also in their special programs
that they offer to the community For the past year and a half, I've gotten to
volunteer at their thrift store located in the Haiku Marketplace and just gotten to
see what they've done with the resources that you guys have supplied them. And
I wanted to thank you so much for what you give them already. This year,
unfortunately, will be the third year that there will be a cut in their funding, but
they are so good with what they do. They are actually able now to expand their
store. But this will be the third year, it'll be a 12 percent cut from you guys and
like MaryLee, we're asking that that wouldn't happen. The breaking point being
that this valuable service, they not only supply a thrift store with a discounted
pricing to all foster caregivers as well as families and children, but they also
supply valuable services emotionally as well as resources, teaching foster parents
how better to supply for their children, how better to get them into the
community, to have them be well adjusted. She gave you a lot of statistics as well
as what happens if that's not done right, if they come out early, if they're
emancipated early. And I just wanted to thank you guys so much for supporting
them and doing what you do, and I understand completely. Being completely
self-sponsored, right--as Youth with a Mission we simply self-sponsor
ourselves--completely understanding the hard decisions that you have to make as
your budget is growing smaller just as much as ours are, ours is. So, I wanted to
thank you so much for making those hard decisions and thank you so much for
choosing to support Keiki Kokua.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you again.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Jacqueline Simone Ambrose, followed by Jocelyn Perreira.
MS. AMBROSE: Hello. Good evening, Council. I'm Project Manager for Aloha Shares
Network. It's a program that's supported by Maui County Department of
Environmental rec..., it's the recycling section. And what. . .the, the program has
been cut like all others, but it's a very valuable program in that it supplies items.
It's two-fold actually. It diverts usable goods from the landfill, things that people
just automatically toss normally, actually get diverted to organizations like Keiki
Kokua, like Hui Malama, Community Work Day. There's a very long list of all
the nonprofit schools and churches that benefit from this program. So, I'd like to
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thank the Council very much for supporting the funding to the Recycling
Department that allows me to continue this really valuable program. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you again.
MS. AMBROSE: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Jocelyn Perreira, followed by Robert Mason.
MS. PERREIRA: Good evening, Council Chair, Council Budget Chair. It's nice to have
you back on Maui. Thank you for working so hard trying to get TAT. My name
is Jocelyn Perreira, I'm the Executive Director of the Wailuku Main Street
Association Inc./Tri-Isle Main Street Resource Center. This area is my home
town. I was also a CAC Member for the Paia-Haiku Community Plan. I passed
out, and I took Councilmember Nishiki's advice, and got a revision to this fact
sheet so that it reflects the true value of the program. What you also have before
you is a resolution that was passed in 2006, and this makes, I believe, very clear
the intent of the program which is an independent entity to work with the County
and not a consultant. So, I believe if you see this, this might, may be helpful. I
was very heartened to see the persons with disabilities here tonight, because
factually a lot of our projects that we do help families and businesses and persons
with disability that want to have access, complete and total access and enjoy what
we have in our small towns, which is part of their history and their culture. We
are concerned about the Historic Preservation cuts from the State. We understand
they're going to be cut in half, and that means that's a serious thing, because the
Historic Preservation Division, you know, one of our partners that we always
work with, is probably going to be eliminated, which means all the more it's
important to have the Main Street program in the County of Maui because we
have been the stalwarts to protect these small towns. We are putting money into
promotion, rightfully so, to promote money, but I'd like to remind everybody it's
important to put money also into the product so that when the visitors do come,
that our small towns are in fact in the shape that they are today and we do, in fact,
say unequivocally because of our small town participants and professionals, that's
why they're in the good shape that they have been in up to this point. We're very
involved in the vision of the General Plan, which as you know is linked to a
strong linkage with small towns. And that was something that we take great pride
in having an influence on in the General Plan. The fact is we are on the frontlines
in trying to implement community plans, and that's why we need to continue to
try to be there. Small towns are not museum pieces. They're alive and with
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unique, with the unique Maui experience. The small towns are not supposed to be
there just for fancy. They are part of the total community package. And we
worked really hard to, and we've been good stewards of County money. So-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. PERREIRA: --I know you understand for us the importance of getting a sufficient
appropriation. We have, maybe 15 years ago, we had about 225,000. So you can
see with 15 years ago if you were to deal with a budget 15 years earlier and your
needs have grown astronomically, well, that's the same situation we're in. Our
needs have not lessened. In fact because we're in such a tailspin, we're getting
requests for assistance from everywhere. And I mean they're, they're handed to
us by people trying to want to do something, we're getting requests--I mean even
the County of Maui sends them to us. We have, even some of you have suggested
they come to us. We have professionals recommending that they come and seek
advice and assistance, and we do try earnestly to help people to come together to
make possible-MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MS. PERREIRA: --projects so that our people can continue to have a livelihood and at
the same time try to keep our towns in good shape. Thank you kindly for your
kind attention and please help us keep this program at the level that it needs to be
so it can function. Thank you. We have the same amount of staff as we had
20 years ago.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? And
thank you again for the information that was requested by Member Nishiki.
Thank you.
MS. PERREIRA: Thank you very much.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Robert Mason, followed by Carlita Tohtz.
MR. MASON: Committee Chair, Committee Members, my name is Robert Mason,
that's my wife Cleo, and in the audience is several of my neighbors from Upper
Ulumalu Road. And I'm here again tonight for about the fourth or fifth year in a
row to ask you to. . . --(change of tape, start 3a)-- . . .for the maintenance of our
road. And at this time, I'd like to give you a table that reflects the funding that
we've had for the last two or three years and the actual maintenance that we
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received. If I could hand out the. . . I'm gonna. . .on one side is the funding
we've had since '07 and on the right side is how many maintenance efforts we've
had. Now this is a private road, but we've over, gone over this about four years
ago. The Council, the Mayor, and the Department of Water Supply have agreed
that the County is responsible for the maintenance of our road. And in 2007, we
received $500,000 from the Council to maintain the road. In 2009, we received
250,000 to maintain our road. Well, in those three years we've had about
three-and-a-fraction maintenance efforts by the Department of Water Supply.
What I would like to ask. . .in a week or so you're going to be going over the
budget from the Department of Water Supply. I'd like to request that you ask 'em
for that $750,000 that they, you've allocated or appropriated, why did we only get
three-and-a-fraction maintenance efforts? Also in the 2011 Budget, the Mayor's
Budget of '01 [sic], from the Field Operations portion of the Department of Water
Supply, there's about a million and quarter dollars in there for construction
supplies, road repair, materials, oil and gas. Well, I would like to. . .if you would
ask them when they come up, is any of that for our road? Because it's not broken
down at all. And if not, then we'd like to request that funding get put in to
continually maintain the road, and it's supposed to be done on a quarterly basis.
The Mayor has specified that to the Department. But like I said, three, maybe
three-and-a-third time in over three years. And this is going back over six years,
this issue. So that's about it. I wanted to thank you for all your past support and
especially Councilman Molina, who's our representative, has really helped us out
in all these years of trying to get this issue resolved. So I'm open up to any
questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Bob, for coming to us and giving this
update on the road. First of all, you know, I want to make sure that credit is
shared with many of the Council Members who supported me in that
appropriation to-MR. MASON: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --help you folks on Upper Ulumalu Road. But let me
say, I'm not too happy with this Administration and how they proceeded with
addressing this issue. You guys have been very nice, you know, and yet-MR. MASON: Very patient.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --very patient. And when this matter first surfaced
back in 2005 under a previous Administration, we brought this matter to the
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attention of the Water Committee, which was then chaired by former
Councilmember Anderson-MR. MASON: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
--and it seemed the prior Administration,
Mayor Arakawa's Administration responded after that. Then, of course, we have
a change in Administration and we appropriated these monies, and it seems like
very little has been done. Apparent..., we got a, a letter was sent to our Budget
Chairman from the Water Director saying that the road is satisfactory in their
minds. Can you give us your opinion? Is the road satisfactory?
MR. MASON: Well, I'm a little biased 'cause I go up and down it several times a day.
But I invite anyone to come out and I'll take them for a free ride. And if I can go
over 15 miles an hour without shaking your fillings loose, you know, and I'll try
to avoid the potholes and the ruts that are in the road. But if it wasn't for--we
have three or four contractors that live on our road--if it wasn't for those guys that
go out every three or four months with their heavy machinery, we wouldn't be
able to go up and down the road. I mean they were out--so that, that's basically it.
It's in very poor condition. I mean we get over 100 inches of rain above Five
Corners here a year. And so every rain, without grading this road, the gravel
just. . .whatever side it run, runs off to into the ditch, then we're back to Maui dirt,
a little bit of asphalt, and concrete around all the manhole covers which is very
dangerous also.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And as we all know, the County has been trying to
correct the problem which they created on a private road. Has anyone from this
Administration been in contact with you on a regular basis?
MR. MASON: Not regular, not really. I'm in contact with them. . . . (chuckle).. .
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So you have to call them and it's like-MR. MASON: Usually.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --is it like pulling teeth to try and get a response from
them?
MR. MASON: Um. . .say that again?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Is it like pulling teeth to try and get a response from
them to update--
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MR. MASON: I think you could say that, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Shameful. Well, well, I just want to let you know this,
Mr. Mason, and to your residents on Upper Ulumalu Road, I am more than happy
to resubmit a communication through the Council Chair, and if Mr. Victorino is
so willing in his Water Committee have an open public hearing on this matter
again so we can get some answers as to why these monies are not being expended.
Are these monies. . .the question is are these monies being used for something
else other than Upper Ulumalu Road? I don't know, but I certainly, like you, I
want to get some answers. So we will stay posted and I'm hoping the
Administration can respond real quick, 'cause otherwise, I will draft that
communication and, you know, work, working with Mr. Victorino if he has time
on his agenda to place this matter for a full public hearing.
MR. MASON: All right. Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Seeing none,
thank you again.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Carlita Tohtz, followed by Paula Ambre.
MS. TOHTZ: Aloha, Council Members. My name is Carlita Tohtz and I am owner and
Clinical Director of The Reading Clinic in Makawao, Maui. We offer
professional assessment in reading and reading instruction to a wide variety of
Maui kids, students. . .many of whom are low-income. And I'm here to testify on
behalf of Maui Economic Opportunity, Business Development Corporation. They
awarded us a microenterprise loan, and with that loan we were able to move into a
professional office space that was the size and the sort of professional building
that we needed to handle the students that. . :cause we were expanding, to furnish
that office and to hire employees and train them deeply enough so that they would
be able to carry out the level of reading instruction that, that we do. I know that
the parents of the students who receive our services are very grateful; they tell us
all the time. And the students themselves tell us. We, we do check-ins kind of
often about how they feel like if they're, if they, they themselves are feeling a
difference in their reading, if it's transferring into their, their lives at school and at
home and in general, and they tell us all the time that they are noticing a
difference. So they're very grateful. And I feel really good being able to provide
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jobs in this economy at The Reading Clinic So. . .oh, and I want to mention that
The Reading Clinic is a No-Child-Left-Behind provider, and that's a program that
focuses specifically on low-income students. And though I'm mostly here to talk
about the small business loan, that microenterprise loan that I was given by MEO
BDC, those students. . .that they actually, the qualifying school is Kalama
Intermediate that has this that, that I do No-Child-Left-Behind for. And those
students, most of them, rely on the Boys and Girls Club and the busing in order to
be able to attend. They walk from Kalama School. That was another reason I
needed the office that I got. But they walk from Kalama School and then
afterwards they take the bus home or they go to the Boys and Girls Club of
Makawao. And so without those two things, a lot of the kids that participate in
the reading help for No-Child-Left-Behind wouldn't be able to come if they
couldn't do, they couldn't. . .they don't have someone to pick them up after. So,
that's all.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you again.
MS. TOHTZ: Okay. Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Paula Ambre, followed by Mapu Kekahuna.
MS. AMBRE: Aloha, Budget Committee Chair Pontanilla, Council Chair Mateo, and
Council Members. My name is Paula Ambre and I'm the Executive Director of
The Maui Farm. I'm here tonight to ask for your continued support for our
Family Strengthening Program. This program has, excuse me, this program has
been included in the Mayor's Budget with a line item through the Department of
Housing and Concerns. The line item reflects a 12 percent reduction over our line
item grant amount from last year. But this program is an important component of
the County's overall plan to address homelessness, and we're grateful for the
support that we've been offered, and we want to continue our work to help
homeless families meet their basic needs and transition to the community as
responsible and contributing members. So we're here tonight to ask for your
support. The Family Strengthening Program serves families who are homeless
due to domestic violence and other economic challenges. We provide transitional
housing, life skills training, parenting training, a farm-based experiential activities
program. And all of these programs together help provide comprehensive
supports to help these families prepare for self-sufficiency. We partner with
Women Helping Women and the Family Life Center, as well as other members of
the homeless services provider community And so we are collaborating and

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 31, 2010 (Makawao-Haiku-Paia District)

doing our best to make sure that there's no duplication of services. Earlier this
year, one of my Board Members and I had a chance to meet with most of you, and
I want to thank you for your time. And we, I think, communicated a lot of
messages to you at that point. The one that I'd like to just reiterate this evening is
that The Maui Farm is not sitting back on our laurels and relying solely on the
County for its support. We've been working hard and actively searching for other
sources of revenue to make up for reductions that we've experienced in our
County funding as well as cuts that we've taken at the State level as well. In this
year to date, The Maui Farm has brought over $200,000 of non-County revenues
into our community This is primarily one contract with the State and a whole lot
of private foundation grants that we've been writing to try and fill little pukas and,
and continue to provide our, our programs. But it's important to note that private
foundation grants aren't a long-term solution. Private foundations generally give
grants for one year; therefore, a one-year time period for a specific purpose. And
generally, foundation grants are. . .we've been more successful in attracting
private foundation grants when we have a governmental funding to be as the core
service. And so we want to ask you for your continued support and that we'll
continue to do our part to make sure that we're raising additional monies, and in
fact we're working to build our capacity in raising funds through private sector
gifts as well as corporate support. You are familiar with our partnership with
Whole Foods Market, and I think that that's a great example of the fruits of some
of our efforts to try and get out and do more creative development activities. We
think that it's important that you hear from the people that we're serving. I had
written testimony; I provided it to Michele. She's going to distribute it to you
folks tomorrow. But we had four individual or four families who are past-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. AMBRE: --or current participants and didn't want to testify, so we brought their
testimony in writing. I also believe that you've heard from one of our clients at
the Upcountry. . .hearing. Just three things in, in closing. Bus stop on Ike Drive,
you know, there's an awful lot of people who are receiving services in the
Upcountry area and we know times are hard, but we want to keep making the
pitch for a bus stop at Ike Drive. I want to reiterate Jacqueline, the Aloha Shares
Network is a tremendous resource to the nonprofit community. At The Maui
Farm we had a family this year that actually had a vehicle donated, and what a
tremendous asset that was to them in their quest for self-sufficiency. Also, a lot
of our moms have taken advantage of the Maui Community College certified
nursing assistant program. That, that program has been so great, not just in giving
these women a job, but a career path. And so we want to ask for your continued
support there as well. So thank you for all of your support and for making
yourselves available--
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MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MS. AMBRE: --and for your time this evening. Aloha.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you, Paula.
MS. AMBRE: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mapu Kekahuna, followed by Anders Lyons.
MR. KEKAHUNA: Good evening, Members, Chair Pontanilla. Aloha, my name is
Mapu Kekahuna. I'm the Vice-Chairman for the Nahiku Community
Association, and thank you from number 41. . . .(chuckle). . . Anyway, I just
wanted to. . .thank you for the opportunity to provide testimony tonight and thank
you for coming out to the communities to hear from our, our residents on
important issues that you have the task in prioritizing. I would like to start with
expressing my disappointment with the Mayor when I learned that she deleted the
$672,000 out of the Maui County's Budget which usually, usually is allocated to
cover half of the cost to fund the emergency medical helicopter service program.
As you know, this, this service is often crucial to ensuring that our residents are
provided with expedient, lifesaving medical transportation attention. This, this is
about saving lives and not knowing that make, that making this service available
to our residents for those unpredictable critical situations has actually proven to
save lives, especially in the rural districts where I live in East Maui, and the
islands of Lanai and Molokai. What troubles me is that this was not made a
priority of the current Administration which seems con..., contradictory since the
Mayor has recently honored several residents who assisted in a critical situation
where a life was threatened. If it weren't for the emergency medical helicopter
service providing its transport to the nearest medical hospital facility, this person
may not have survived. I know of many other instances where this service have
saved lives. Our constituents are appreciative of this service and have, have a
peace of mind knowing that this service is available to them. I am humbly,
humbly asking for your assistance in reestablishing this 672,000 in the Budget to
guarantee the continuation of the emergency medical helicopter service program
this year and in the future. It is too valuable of a service to our community to
ignore and delete from the County's Budget regardless of the situation we're
experiencing during this economic hardship times. It is a matter of priority and I
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hope that you put saving lives on the top of your list when deliberting,
deliberating the County of Maui's Budget. Thank you for your time.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you. Anders Lyons, please, followed by Josh Stone.
MR. LYONS: Chair Pontanilla and Budget and Finance Committee Members, thank you
very much. I'm here representing the Maui Economic Development Board, and
I'd like to make my testimony very short and sweet. Thank you very much for
your past support. It has been essential to the success of Maui Economic
Development Board. And I just want to remind you of just a couple of the things
that the Board continues to do for our community, which is manage the Maui
Research and Technology Park providing over 400 jobs to the Maui community
and high-tech diversified jobs; support the, host the AMOS Conference, which is
an annual conference of cutting-edge optical scientists, with 600 scientists coming
to Maui every year for this conference; the Women In Technology which is one of
my absolute favorite programs for the MEDB, and you've heard testimony about
that already tonight; and then the Focus Maui Nui Program, which has provided
invaluable insight into the Planning Department's efforts in creating the
community plan. So those are just four of tens of, of projects that MEDB does.
Thank you for your support. Thank you for your past support. Thank you for
your future support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none. . .
MR. LYONS: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .thanks again.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Josh Stone, followed by Beth Mathias.
MR. STONE: Aloha, Council Members.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aloha.
MR. STONE: My name is Josh Stone and I'm here to voice my support for the Tri-Isle
Main Street Resource Center. I'm a local boy, born and raised in Hawaii,
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graduate of Kamehameha Schools, who moved to Maui because of its beauty,
charm, and relaxed style. I've always loved the small towns that Maui has been
able to protect over all these years and have become passionate about revitalizing
the old buildings in Paia and Makawao, even making a living out of that passion.
I now own a couple of commercial properties in both Paia and Makawao and
some of the businesses that are integral part of these towns. I have also survived
the process of permitting small town development, no easy task to achieve due to
a permitting system that does not understand the unique issues and limitations of
our small towns. I can tell you now that without the assistance, support, and
intelligent understanding from the Tri-Isle Main Street Resource Center, I'd most
likely not had been able to open many of my businesses, nor properly maintain it
and repair these buildings, nor steer my way through an extremely tedious and
expensive process to permit new construction, all of which benefits the town, the
community, the County, and my family. I believe the inherent issue lies in the
fact that our Building Code does not realistically take into account the limitations
of our B-CT zoned properties. The majority of these properties have existing
buildings that are decades if not centuries old, and they're all in desperate need of
repair and maintenance. These buildings are the basis for the charm and beauty
that attracts residents and visitors alike, but the process to protect and maintain
these buildings is a maze of subjective code that oftentimes trips over itself or
creates Catch-22 situations that make it simp..., simply, a simple act of repair
virtually impossible. For example, to bring a building in an SMA zone, which
encompasses all of Paia town, to full compliance as the Code requires for repairs
of just $125,000, which as you guys know is the price of picking up a hammer
nowadays, is impossible for 90 percent of our buildings. How can you provide
additional parking when the building takes up a whole lot? How can you feasibly
bring a building into compliance with Water Department fire suppression
standards without spending a fortune to upgrade the County's faulty system?
How can you meet electric, fire, or plumbing standards in a building that's nearly
100 years old without tearing it down or starting from scratch? The simple
answer is you can't. So what happens then? The building owner and tenant have
two options. Option one, let the building rot and fall, or option two, wing it
without permissions and, and face extreme enforcement, which has increased
dramatically in the past few years. Tri-Isle Main Source, Tri-Isle Main Street
Resource Center offers the only real access and venue for small town businesses
and property owners-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. STONE: --to work out these issues with the County so that realistic solutions can be
found. It also offers a venue for the local community to have direct input on
projects going on in their small towns. Without it, the small town community
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who have, will not have a voice in the County, and that will most certainly lead to
the unintended decline of our small towns, starting with the death of many of
these vital buildings which will ultimately lead to economic collapse without
understanding there's no chance for survival. And Tri-Isle Main Street Resource
Center has provided that understanding for many years and has saved the
character and charm of our small towns. We need Tri-Isle Main Street Resource
Center. Mahalo for your time and understanding.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good evening, Josh. Thanks for sharing your concerns
and your appreciation of our small towns and buildings. So you're saying that
Tri-Isle Main Street serves as a vehicle for you as a small business owner with the
County--and, you know, we've heard concerns on Molokai as well about the
permitting process. So because without them you would be in, I guess, in, in
deeper-MR. STONE: Well, you know, an issue is that the, the Building Code, the way it's
written, doesn't take into account that small towns have very big restrictions, you
know, our lots, our buildings take up the entire property. And so oftentimes when
we try to get stuff done to just try to repair the buildings, we get requirements that
are put on us that are impossible. We can't, we cannot provide parking 'cause our
building takes up the whole lot. We cannot fix the water system because to do a
$300,000 repair, you're not going to spend $4 million, and it's these kind of
issues that Tri-Isle has always stood beside us. And if we didn't have them, there
was no way to communicate that with the County.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So they, in essence, serve as a voice of reason between
the small business owner and the County permit department?
MR. STONE: One, one of the only voices. And, and they have enough power that we
actually are able to negotiate through the process.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
MR. STONE: Sure. Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Beth Mathias, followed by Scott Obley.
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MS. MATHIAS: Aloha.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aloha.
MS. MATHIAS: My name is Beth Mathias and I'm a volunteer who serves on the Board
of Directors for The Maui Farm, and I'm here tonight to request Council support
for continued funding for The Maui Farm's Family Strengthening Program. It
serves families from our community who are homeless due to domestic violence
and economic challenges. We work in partnership with Women Helping Women
and the Family Life Center to help change these people's lives. This program has
been recommended for funding in the current budget with a 12 percent reduction
over last year's reduced funding level. We recognize the need to do our part in
these economic times, and we've done so. We're grateful that continued funding
has been recommended for this really important program. The Family
Strengthening Program provides housing and life skills training that is effective,
effective in helping families get back on their feet and make a successful
transition to self-sufficient living. We work intensively with families to assist
them in making gains in advancing their education, securing employment,
improving their parenting skills, and obtaining affordable housing. The staff is
remarkable. They do a great job of supporting families in making significant life
changes so that they are successful in their transition to self-sufficient living as
responsible and productive members of our community. I volunteered and sat on
numerous boards and. . .over 30 years here on Maui, and when I first volunteered
at The Maui Farm, I was just stunned at the work that they do and the
effectiveness with what they do. It was just thrilling to see how well their staff
worked with the residents there to form a cohesive unit that was really making a
change in these people's lives. The Maui Farm hasn't relied solely on the County
and we're doing lots of things to find other funding sources, which we know we
need to do. But we need the County's core support in order to leverage those
funds to go after other funding. So kind of the same story. We request that the
County Council's continued support in maintaining the funding for our Family
Strengthening Program at the level recommended in the Mayor's Budget. I
thought you guys had an easy job. Not so much. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Scott Obley, followed by Debi Irby.
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MR. OBLEY: Good evening and thank you for allowing me this opportunity to be here
this evening. I'm here to speak on behalf of the Maui Economic Development
Board. In light of what you started off the evening talking about the Transient
Accommodation Tax and the possibility that it may go away, that $17 5 million
loss or perhaps $8 2 million loss, I believe it's even more critical that we support
the Maui Economic Development Board for what they do. You've heard
testimony earlier about some of the organization, some of the branches in MEDB
that are so important, and I'd like to speak specifically about the AMOS
Technical Conference because it, it impacts me personally. I work in the visitor
industry and this is a non-funded conference, but MEDB does coordinate the
conference, and there are more than 600 very, very, very smart people who come
to this conference and talk about things that I don't understand while they're here.
But I do understand one thing, they spend a lot of money when they're here, and
they keep 400 of my fellow employees working in September, which is a time
when typically the visitor industry is suffering a little bit. So we're very
appreciative of the fact that at our hotel we get to partner with MEDB to host that
conference. In addition to the, these scientists being here on island, spending their
money, they're also going back and forth up to the Research and Technology
Park, and there's a lot of commerce that takes place there, they're being exposed
to those wonderful facilities up there, and interacting with people who live and
work up there. And I just think it's, it's very important in this, in this economy,
especially if we're losing things like the TAT, that we keep bringing visitors here
that'll spend money within the community but also, you know, the work that
MEDB, MEDB does to help diversify the economy. And so that's why I'm here
to testify on their behalf and I thank you for that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? What
hotel you represent?
MR. OBLEY: I'm at the Wailea Marriott Resort.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. OBLEY: Yeah.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Debi Irby, followed Nick Nikhilananda.
MS. IRBY: Microphone. Aloha, everyone. I'm Debi Irby. I'm a pilot with the Maui
Medevac. Just kinda, of course, as you know. . .I was kind of shocked, just as
you've heard from other testifiers, with the Mayor leaving the money out of the
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Budget, 'cause it took so long to get this to Maui County and the fact that the
State had funded their portion. Bear with me, I'm a little tired, I just came off a
72-hour shift. Just to kind of give you a background, too. . .just recently I think
some of you may have heard, Monday we did have an accident on Molokai. I got
a call around 11 o'clock, I believe, and we were started, ready to go.
Unfortunately, it was a pretty bad accident. But we're pretty quick getting over
there and getting back, and had a full moon so we could've taken him anywhere.
So the outer-islands are very, very critical to us. I'll kind of give you my
background. I've been in aviation for 30 years. I am from Maui. I've been active
duty military and I've also been in the Hawaii National Guard, so I'm very
familiar with their budgeting and expenses. And I've also done bud..., other
budgeting for other medevacs on the mainland, but mostly more familiar with
here, being from here. I'm also a small business owner. This kind of started,
came about for me. . .I just got back from Afghanistan and I was asked to do this
job, and I knew it's so critical to this County that the fact that we were actually
going to get something. After seeing such things as Iniki, if you can remember
what happened in Iniki, I was one of the first over there and, you know, just the
devastation and you didn't see for two days, the National Guard didn't even get
over there. It was just us, and we couldn't do much at all. I was flying another
commercial outfit at the time. And just a background which is the tsunami
incident, I think it's just a matter of time before something like this happens.
When. . .this last scare, and boy, did we luck out, we had the medevac ready. We
went up to Kula, moved our fuel, we're ready to go, and we're the only source.
And I can tell you, no other source is going to make it to Maui County in an
emergency. We haven't had a hurricane since Iniki, I think, you know, and it's an
El Nino year. I keep predicting it's. . .you know, I think we've lucked out so far.
But in truth, the National Guard's in Hilo with the Black Hawks, most of the
National Guard are deployed. The Chinooks are getting ready to deploy to
Afghanistan, and we're really the only source for any major emergency here in
the County. You know, the bottom line is and you've probably heard time and
time again, it saves lives, you know, we're, we're really critical. And the program
is really advanced from when we first started. I think a lot of people didn't know
how to use us, were afraid to call. And when we first started, of course, you
probably remember the accident, you know, in the BMW and HAI was knocked
out of place, and so we ended up doing a lot of transfers. But-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. IRBY: Oh, I'll be, try to be faster here. But in truth, we're actually for on-scene,
like car accidents. And I, I just want to say for the people when you fly and you
go out to Hana, for instance, or you go to Molokai or Lanai, the whole families
come out when you pick up there, the people. I mean it just, it's heartbreaking,
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but it's also you feel really good to be able to save a life in such remote areas.
I've picked people up in Kaupo, you know, just a lot of places you wouldn't think
about, from cliffs. And we're kind of like the firemen, you know, most of the
time we may not be needed, but when. . . --(change of tape, start 3b)-. . .lifesaving situation. You know, and all of us that work in this, we're from
Maui. The money stays here. It's not like we're bringing in people from the
mainland or anything. This money is getting spent on the island, including, you
know, how often does the State give counties money, you know. And including
that money brought, brought in for that, it's gonna stay in Maui County. I can't-MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MS. IRBY: Oh, quick. But I know from budgeting and doing business plans for
medevac, you know, we'll never get this back in truth if we let this go. It would
cost three to five times as much to bring a comparable aircraft, pilots, and
everything else in. I mean it's just a really critical. I just. . .when I took it, it was
because I wanted to do it for the community I'm not going to lie, took a budget
cut, but I really believe that it, it is needed. I mean we have all these little islands,
it's not Oahu just in one place. And I thank you so much for listening to my
testimony and really appreciate. And you have any questions?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thanks again.
MS. IRBY: Okay. Thank you so much.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Nikhilananda, followed by Barry Rivers.
MR. NIKHILANANDA: Good evening, Budget Chair Pontanilla and Vice-Chair Mateo
and Members of the Budget Committee. My name is Nikhilananda. I really
appreciate the testimony from all evening tonight so that I can hopefully skip
some of my testimony and get to some that have not been mentioned. I was going
to start out with the, the support for the MEO and the Maui Bus services and I
really appreciate to hear all the testimony on that. And also, I was really touched
by all the testimony by the wheel people because I grew up with a triple amputee
father, and I know how valuable services for the differently-abled and I've always
loved MEO and Gladys and everything that they've done. So, I want to get to a
couple of things really quickly. This County for years has been double- and
triple-talking when it comes to the idea of recycling. Our current Governor in
1995 proposed curbside recycling. It was blocked 15 years later. We still don't
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have curbside recycling. It's one of the number one issues that people mentioned
to me. They cannot believe how backwards, what a backwater this is. You heard
earlier, and I ran out and talked to Marty, would he mind if we had curbside
recycling? Get to it already, enough of the wasted money to have all these drop
boxes. Out where I am every day when there's a delivery of, pickup of sewage,
garbage, you know, to have two 95-gallon containers for the automated service is
just ridiculous. Anyway, I went way too long on that. Put some money into
researching alternative electoral methods. It's not a sancr..., sanc that we have
nine Council Members. It's time that we went into a district system, but look to
see whether that system would work. Put some money into looking if we had, for
example, some alternative ways of electing people, either an instant run or for
preferential voting system. We could skip the primary, for example--everybody's
talking about money. Beach access. It's time to review and implement access to
beaches right over here on Woo Place. Tear down the wall. You can't get to that
beach anymore and there's other places where you can't get to beaches. So let's
put some finances to looking at access to beaches already. Also, let's tear down
the park, County park barriers. What is this, that at 7 o'clock the beaches are
locked out? I hardly ever get over to South Maui, but the other day I was over
and walked along Keawakapu Beach, and you can't do that here as far as I know
legally to go to Baldwin Beach or some of the other beaches, you have gates,
Hookipa, and all that. Tear it down, it's not going to take much money. Just go
and you can hire somebody, and they'll have a job to tear down those barriers.
Also, open up the bathrooms at night. What is this that they're locked at
7 o'clock, so you can hire someone, one or two people, to clean 'em off. That
someone has to defecate or urinate, they're going to go on the ground. Open up
the bathrooms. This is also ridiculous. Now as far as property tax, people talking
about that, and I was really glad I walked in when Bill was talking about
here. . .oh, it was, started the testimony because everybody knows about what he's
talked about over the years in, in altering our property tax system. You're going
to look at the property tax system and-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. NIKHILANANDA: --we need to look at different rates. For example, a house that
cost a million dollars to $2 million, for example, $3 per 1,000 of, of value; 2 to
$3 million, $3.50 per $1,000; 3 to $4 million, et cetera. Look at the different
value of houses instead of one size fits all, that I pay the same as someone who
has a $10 million house. In 1992, I met the current Mayor who was the head of
Parks and Recreation. I said to her, you know, it'd be nice to have tennis courts
out in Haiku or Paia. And in the early 2000s, it was in the Budget for the Fourth
Marine Park and every year it got taken out. And I was told it's okay, Nick, it's
okay, Nick. . .as soon as the equestrian area is done, we'll put in tennis courts.
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Well, since then four courts have been built up in Kula. It's time to put at least
one, if not, two courts over at the Fourth Marine Park in Haiku. Haiku, Huelo,
Paia--no tennis courts. The closest ones are Haliimaile and Makawao, et cetera,
et cetera. Okay. Set aside some funds to buy eminent domain-MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MR. NIKHILANANDA: --purchase the EMI Ditch system. Enough with this stuff also.
They've been stealing the community's water for 150 years. It's County and it's
the people's water, and then the County can divvy it up to the people that deserve
water. I'm really glad to see in your budget, that in the budget--not your
budget--but in the budget that there's money for reservoirs, et cetera. But there
we have all of that money and you'd have the Upcountry people and the East
Maui people stop fighting over the water that they want because it's our water.
And make sure that people can have a water meter and also be able to have a
water catchment system. I saw you have Hansen Road improvements in 2012 and
2014, $4.1 million. I hope that money is going to go to widening that road and
make it. That is the major connecting road between West Maui and South Maui
with Upcountry and East Maui. It's enough already, that road is just disgusting,
and I know they put everyone through Dairy Road and we should've had a bypass
going to the airport.
MS. NAKATA: Five minutes.
MR. NIKHILANANDA: Great. If you're going to look at the electoral system, of
course move Precinct 13-4, which is Huelo and Kailua, into the Haiku-Paia
District. We're in that district for everything, except for the electoral system. I'm
going to get really quickly, I'm finishing up. And we have a glut of
market-priced homes. Why don't we subsidize for home, for low-income housing
instead of building more affordable houses? We already have a lot of houses on
this island. Let's subsidize to purchase some of the market-priced homes on this
island. And also the last thing that I want to say now is to implement a system,
put in some funding to implement a system so people can testify from outlying
areas, like Hana, Molokai, and Lanai, instead of coming here or to the Council, as
a Council Member suggested at a break today, come when there's not many
people. But why can't people in Molokai, Lanai and in Hana, for example, or
Lahaina testify before the Council? It's now the 21 st Century. They have the
HITS program at the-MS. NAKATA: Six minutes.
MR. NIKHILANANDA: --University of--
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Can you conclude?
MR. NIKHILANANDA: --of Hawaii. And, yeah, I mean I'm cutting things fast and I'm
not going into detail, and I'm just giving you a potpourri, trying to cut out the
stuff that other people talked about because the things for youth, I was a teacher at
Job Corps, et cetera-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr.-MR. NIKHILANANDA: --those are all really important things.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Mr. Nikhilananda-MR. NIKHILANANDA: Thank you very much. Aloha.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you. Barry Rivers, followed by Stephen Jiran.
MR. RIVERS: I don't want to hear anyone ever again say that I'm a fast talker.
AUDIENCE: . . .(chuckle). . .
MR. RIVERS: I'm on Valium, it turns out. . . .(chuckle). . . How are you all? Thanks
for coming to Paia. We appreciate you being here. We appreciate all the hard
work that you guys have done and women have done to really try and pull this
budget together. This has not been an easy task, I know, the last couple of years.
That said, I'm here for a couple of reasons. As a, as the Director and Founder of
Maui Film Festival, I want to again thank you for your continuing support of the
festival. We've had the good fortune of having that through Benita Brazier,
previous to her, Amy Kastens, and the Maui Film Office of the County OED and
we're much appreciative of that. It really is one of the things that helps the
festival continue to thrive, even in challenging times, for the last ten years or so.
We also want to thank the MEDB which has been our fiscal sponsor for the, for
the funding we receive from the Hawaii Tourism Authority and have received
over the years as well from the State Film Office. We really couldn't do it
without their support. I love working with Jeanne and her whole team over there,
they're just topnotch and they make this challenging grant process and reporting
process a pleasure. So, I want to thank them. Also, I want to thank the people at
the Maui Arts and Cultural Center and thank all of you for your support, both of
the MEDB and the Film Office and the MACC because we couldn't do what we
do. We never would have started the festival without the MACC being there and
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being open to the idea of letting us sort of open this window in the world to
people here on a weekly basis, which in turn grew into this annual event, as you
know which takes place in Wailea which has. . .I heard, I forget her name now,
the artist--Sutrov, I think, was her last name--talking about how the MACC has
had 250,000 school kids go through there and experience the arts and in all these
different ways. You know, we have probably given--I was trying to do the
math--but it's upwards of 150,000 tickets to young kids 12 and under during our
June event. Whenever we have films that are appropriate for kids, we always let
kids come for free to those films. That's something we've taken great pride in
over the years. We also employ 65, 70, 80 people during the festival, mostly all
local, a few people come from the mainland with real specific skills, but most of
the people who are from here. We generate millions of dollars in tax revenue and
other sort of--I forget the term they use--but the trickle down thing where dollars
become more dollars and all that stuff; a lot of hotel rooms are filled up, those
people; they take surf lessons; they, they eat meals out; they get massages and all
that stuff; circulates, regenerates a lot of money with that. But most importantly
of all and the reason the festival started from the very beginning, was to sort of
infuse this spirit of creativity that I think again this young woman really hit it
right in the head, that, that is the source of whatever problem solving we will need
to do for problems yet unforeseen that we all will collectively face and certainly
our kids and grandkids will face going forward. I mean that is really the missing
link and that is unfortunately one of those things that's really lacking in the
schools now, is that they've cut back so much on these programs, that
organizations like the Maui Arts and Cultural Center or the Iao Theater folks and
what they do, and MAPA, and the Maui Film Festival really do help, I think,
bring that spark of creativity to kids which will really help us all thrive going
forward. There's one organization I want to tell you about that's not Maui based,
but it's been a great model for our festival as we've built what we've created here,
which is, it's called FilmAid International. I may have mentioned this to you the
last time I testified. They work under the UN Refugees Offices auspices and they
work all over the world in the most dire circumstances-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. RIVERS: Okay, I'll get there. And what they do is, what they found in all those
refugee camps was that food, water, clothing, medical care, shelter--not enough.
People needed hope. And in the case of that organization and, and in the case of
what Maui Film Festival does, they bring that hope to people through the right
kind of cinema. So, you know, that's what we're about. It's not just showing
movies with some big stars and lots of car crashes and women in peril. That's
decidedly not what we do. We've really always been about the presentation of
compassionate vision and life-affirming storytelling. That's why we moved to
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Maui, that's what I want to spend my life doing, and that's what we continue to
do. Thanks for your support.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Mr. Rivers? Seeing
none, thank you. Stephen Jiran, followed by Shental Gerard.
MR. JIRAN: Council Members, I've watched through the last couple, three hours and,
you know, I'm pretty sure you've guys have taken the time to listen to everybody.
I'm actually here on behalf of Maui Food Bank and I'm a Board Member there.
And, you know, we've heard people try to do less with less. Unfortunately,
we're, we have to do more with less. This year we, we did ask a reduced County
participation at the request of Charmaine I know you guys probably understand
the way we work. We're kind of like the reserve bank. We have over 100
participants that are our commercial banks that actually gets out in the
community We are on Lanai, we are on Molokai successfully finally, and we are
doing some capital improvements. We are scratching every corner of the world
literally to raise capital. And. . .all I can say is, you know, many, many, many
mahalos for the support in the past and, you know, good luck trying to make,
make your decisions. You guys got a daunting task. And I know a lot of you
guys personally and, you know, if there's anything I can do professionally to, to
help, you know, obviously don't, don't hesitate to ask. All right, you guys, that's,
that's all I got. I'm quick and short.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Maggie. . .Shental Gerard. Maggie Prevenas.. .
MS. PREVENAS (from the audience): Close enough.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .Prevenas.
MS. PREVENAS: Hello, my name is Maggie Prevenas and I am a proud teacher of
Kalama Intermediate School, which I think is the best intermediate school on the
island. It's all been said. I honestly cannot add anything to what's been said, so I
have. . .I think they're called manipulatives. That is from a brand new program
that's been sponsored by MEDB. It's called Engineering in the Middle, and we
started it this year for middle schools to start bubbling the idea of staying on Maui
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with a high-paying job, doing better in math and science. That was my bridge.
`Cause I.. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, that's a bridge?
MS. PREVENAS: Yeah. It was a bridge and it held over 70 pounds before it smashed
Note: Short pause while Ms. Prevenas distributes documents to the Council Members.

. . .What is being passed along--I should have started one on the other side--but
those, that is from the Maui Arts and Cultural Center, that is from my classroom,
because I have taken over 120 hours of arts education from the Maui Arts and
Cultural Center. And my kids learn through doing art, they think creatively, they
do things creatively. You can see that they're beautiful, and they learn science
because of that. They learn science deeply and they can do creative,
outside-the-box thinking. I'm very proud of my students.
Note: Short pause while Ms. Prevenas distributes additional documents to the Council Members.

. . .Those are collaborative murals. They represent 26 students. Every piece of
the mural is drawn by one of the students, we put it all together, and it explains
about the habitat of each of their aumakua so that they understand not only their
place in Maui, but they also understand how they are connected to the animals
that surround us.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. PREVENAS: This is letters that all 147 of my students have written to you, letting
you know how important it is for them to learn in this new way integrating art and
engineering, and science and math into my classes with elements of GPS, GIS.
It's a very strange kind of integrative, collaborative curriculum, but word has it
through Edison, which is our restructuring guru, that we are actually the best of
the worst. . . .(chuckle). . . So we're getting better. We're, we're trying really
hard out of all the schools in restructuring-MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MS. PREVENAS: --so, I'd like to leave this with you. All letters, they're yours and
they're from all abilities, like my students--from students who can't really speak
very much English at all down to students who are entirely gifted and talented.
So, I, I thank you so much for giving to our schools the way you do.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? I, I got
one fast one. So presently, Kalama Intermediate is in the restructuring mode?
MS. PREVENAS: Yes, we are.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I am a SAC Member for Maui Waena and.. .
MS. PREVENAS: Oh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .we've done pretty well with the results that we got from
Edison. So, I just wanted to share that.
MS. PREVENAS: Isn't it wonderful? Yes. Thank you. Maui Waena is the best.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(chuckle). . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But Kalama is better, I heard that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. The last person to sign up for public testimony is Dave,
Dr. Dave Nelson.
MR. NELSON: Hi. Thanks for waiting and hanging in there so long. I'll shoot for less
than three minutes. I've been an ER doctor for 30 years. I've worked in
Colorado, Scotland, Saudi Arabia, Utah, and here for 20 years. In all those
locations I've been working with ambulance services and medical helicopters.
And I didn't realize that until recently that we're at risk for losing ours, but it was
very difficult to achieve. The fragile partnership we've got with State, County,
Pacific Helicopters and EMR are all working together to provide a resource that
private funding won't support. It's too expensive for any company to keep it
going. And it's, it's the standard of care on the mainland. University of Utah
where I worked, we had two helicopters and it's just the, the accepted standard of
care for providing people in remote areas emergency care, and it, it's one of
many, many items on your list of things to fund, but I think it's the only lifesaving
item. And so it goes beyond medical care, it's just medical safety. For an ER
doctor, it's a very useful tool for how we're going to solve a problem in a remote
area and keep somebody alive or get them to the operating room fast enough to
keep them alive. It's especially important now because we're just getting a
helipad, and not having a hospital helipad has restricted the use of the helicopter
until this year. We've been limiting it to just certain areas in the extreme east and
west sides of the island for scene calls, because we don't want to use it if a ground
ambulance would beat it, if the ground ambulance would be faster. But now we'll
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be subtracting about 15 minutes from the time, and so how fast can you drive an
ambulance in 15 minutes? You know, about 15 miles So the wedges on the east
and west side where the helicopter will be useful will be much bigger and it'll get
more use, and the hospital plans on bringing in people to make it a regional center
for cardiac cath, putting in stents. We have a very gifted neurosurgeon already,
and we could be getting transfers coming in as well as scene calls from remote
Maui or transfers to Queen's or Kuakini for their hyperbaric chamber. So it'll be
used more and more. I hope we're able to continue it, and I think it's very
important just for our medical safety for us and our families. Do you have any
questions for me?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you again, Dr. Nelson.
MR. NELSON: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, Dr. Nelson was the last testifier this evening.
Is there anyone out there that hasn't signed up for public testimony that want to
provide public testimony at this time?
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY.. .

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, I just want thank everyone for being here at this
late hour. We've heard all of the issues, concerns regarding this community.
And, of course, you know, we have a daunting job trying to create a budget that
will be. . .that is satisfying the people of this County. So, again, thank you very
much. And, Members, don't forget tomorrow morning at 9 o'clock in the Council
Chambers.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (excused: JAJ, BKM)
ACTION: DEFER pending further discussion.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: This meeting is adjourned. . . .(gavel). . .
ADJOURN: 9:41 p.m.
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